ABAG FINANCE AND PERSONNEL COMMITTEE

Thursday, November 15, 2012, 5:00 p.m.
ABAG Conference Room B
MetroCenter—8™ and Oak Streets

Oakland, CA
Recommendation
1. Call to Order o
2. Public Comments Information
*3.  Minutes of the September 20, 2012 Meeting Action
**4  Financial Reports - ABAG Action

The July, August and September 2012 Financial reports will be
presented and reviewed.

*5.  Proposal to pay per diem for attending regular BACEI meetings Action
Pursuant to F&P direction, staff has prepared memorandum and
resolution for adoption by Executive Board to implement a per diem
policy to reimburse current and past Presidents and the Vice
President of ABAG (still on the ABAG Executive Board) who attend
the regularly scheduled quarterly meetings of the Bay Area Council
Economic Institute.

**6  Audited Financial Reports for ABAG Action
Auditors from Maze & Associates will present the June 30, 2012
audited financial reports for ABAG. Committee will consider
recommending Executive Board approval of these reports.

THE FOLLOWING ITEMS WILL BE DISCUSSED IN
CLOSED SESSION PURSUANT TO THE REQUIREMENTS
OF THE RALPH M. BROWN ACT.

7.  Conference with Labor Negotiators Action/
Agency designated representatives: Ezra Rapport, Patricia Jones, Information
Herbert Pike, Kenneth Moy and Brian Kirking.

Employee organization: SEIU Local 1021.

8. Public Employee Performance Evaluation Action/
Title: Executive Director Information

Item 12



9. Adjournment Action

*  Attachments enclosed with packet.
**  Supporting documentation will be sent under separate cover.
*** The Committee may take action on any item on the agenda, which action may be the
recommended action, any other action or no action.

Item 12
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ABAG FINANCE AND PERSONNEL COMMITTEE

Members Present

Supervisor Jacobs Gibson, Chair

Supervisor David Cortese

Mayor Mark Green

Supervisor Scott Haggerty

Supervisor John Gioia

Supervisor Barbara Kondylis

Supervisor Mark Luce

Vice Mayor Peter McHugh
Councilmember Julie Pierce
Councilmember A. Sepi Richardson

Members Not in Attendance
Supervisor David Rabbitt

Officers and Staff Present
Ezra Rapport, Executive Director

Patricia Jones, Assistant Executive Director

Kenneth Moy, Legal Counsel
Herbert Pike, Finance Director

Susan Hsieh, Assistant Finance Director

Summary Minutes

September 20, 2012

Jurisdiction

County of San Mateo
County of Santa Clara
City of Union City
County of Alameda
County of Contra Costa
County of Solano
County of Napa

City of Milpitas

City of Clayton

City of Brisbane

County of Sonoma

1) Chair Jacobs Gibson called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.

2) There were no public comments.

3) Summary Minutes of the July 19, 2012 meeting were approved.

IM/Haggerty/S/Green/C/approved.

4) Pike provided an overview of the June 2012 Financial Reports.

IM/McHugh/S/Pierce/C/approved.

5) Pike presented the annual Report on Diversity and Business Opportunity for Fiscal Year

2012-13.

IM/Haggerty/S/McHugh/C/approved.
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ABAG Finance and Personnel Committee
Minutes of the September 20, 2012 Meeting

Page 2

6)

7)

8)

9)

The Committee discussed a proposed ABAG resolution to pay per diem to members who
attend a regular ABAG Board or committee meeting for which a quorum is not achieve.
IM/Richardson/S/McHugh/C/approved.

The Committee discussed whether payment of perdiem should be provided for ABAG
Board members who attend regular quarterly meetings of the Bay Area Council
Economic Institute meetings. The Committee directed staff to return at the next meeting
of the Finance & Personnel Committee, November 15, with a proposed resolution.
IM/Haggerty/S/Jacobs-Gibson/C/to direct staff to return on November 15 with proposed
resolution.

Rapport reported to the Committee on the progress in securing long-term funding through
at least through June 2017. The intent is to negotiate every two years for an on-going
four year agreement to assure on-going continuous funding.

Pike presented the major elements of the recent State legislation modifying employee
retirement benefits and how it will impact current and prospective ABAG employees.

10) In closed session, the Committee discussed the Employee Performance Evaluation of

Legal Counsel.

11) The meeting was adjourned at 6:45 p.m.
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TO:  Finance and Personnel Committee DT: November 2, 2012

FM: Herbert Pike, Finance Director Re: Financial Reports
--July 2012

The following are highlights of the financial reports for July 2012.

Overall Summary (Figures 3.4, 7 & 8)

July 2012 represents the first month of the new fiscal year. ABAG fund equity went down about $66
thousand during July 2012, but it is early in the year and compares favorably to a year prior when
fund equity went down $149 thousand in July 2011. As we know, last fiscal year ended with an
annual increase in fund equity of over $100 thousand. We will obviously closely monitor fund
equity as the year progresses, but it is far too early at this point to project yearend variances.

Cash on Hand (Figure 1)

Cash on hand increased to $3.27 million as of July 31st from $2.23 million on June 30th. The
increase of $1.04 million is attributed primarily to the quarterly cycle wherein billing and
reimbursement follows the quarter- and year-end of June 30. The July balance includes
approximately $1.37 million invested in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). Currently,
ABAG does not hold any other investments. The July 31st cash balance is approximately $397
thousand greater than the prior year.

Receivables (Figure 2)

Receivables from grant and service programs amounted to about $5.38 million on July 31st, an
increase of $205 thousand over the month prior. The month to month increase reflects primarily the
year-end close out of various grants. Because this is the first month of the new quarter and year, all
of the receivables have yet to be billed accounting for the relatively high $3.70 million in unbilled
receivables. Receivables are approximately $751 thousand higher than they were a year prior
reflecting the higher volume of grant funded activities in the fiscal year just ended. Several other
contractors and pass-through recipients stepped up the pace in the submission of their bills as the

fiscal year drew to a close.

Actual vs. Budgeted Expenses (Figure 9)

Total expenses through July 31st, the first month of the new fiscal year, amounted to about $2.03
million, or 9.67 percent, of the budgeted annual expense of $20.985 million for FY 2012-13. This is
attributable to some grants with large contractual and pass-through activities. It exceeds the 8.33
percent (one-twelfth) monthly average and is opposite the normal trend where there is usually a
slight lag in the onset of new expenses in the new fiscal year.

F&PC AGENDA ITEM #4-A



Actual vs. Budgeted Revenues (Figure 10)

As of July 31st, total revenues amounted to about $1.965 million, or 9.34 percent, of the budgeted
annual revenue of $21.035 million for FY 2012-13. That is slightly in excess of the normal 8.33
percent projected monthly (one-twelfth). This is attributable to the accrued revenue associated with
the higher expenditures noted above.

Fund Equity (Figure 5)

As of July 31st, general fund equity was approximately $1.10 million, a decrease of $65 thousand
from the prior month. The Agency’s restricted fund equity, consisting of capital, self-insurance,
building maintenance and reserves, was increased by $50 thousand to $610 in June. That is $50
thousand over the prior month and previous year to reflect the discussed minimum annual reserve
increase of $50 thousand per year. Total fund equity of $1.71 million is $217 thousand greater than

the year prior.

Indirect Cost (Figure 6)

The Agency’s actual indirect cost (overhead) rate was 41.16 percent, or 1.79 percent below target.
The rate is expected to increase over the next several months as several grants expire and the year-
end closing process for other entities subsides. As new grants get authorized, the rate may again go
down as resources are diverted from indirect overhead to handle new grants.

F&PC AGENDA ITEM #4-A
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ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
FINANCE & PERSONNEL COMMITTEE

TABLE OF FINANCIAL REPORT DATA ELEMENTS
{thousands of dollars)

FOR THE MONTH ENDED JULY 31, 2012

Year-To-Date Year-End

Description Actual Estimate

Cash 3,272 2,000

Receivables 5,382 5,500

Membership Dues 143 1,726
Grants 1,404 13,279
Charges for Services 418 6,030
Total Revenues 1,965 21,035

Salaries and Related Benefits 1,036 11,902
Consultant Services 858 7,000
Other Expenses 137 2,083
Total Expenses 2,031 20,985
Change in Net Assets (66) 50

Beginning Net Assets 1,772 1,772
Ending Net Assets 1,706 1,822

Unrestricted 1,096 1,162
Restricted 610 610
Total Net Assets 1,706 1,772

Approved Overhead 42.95% 42.95%
Overhead Rate % 41.16% 42.95%

F&PC AGENDA ITEM #4-A



TO:  Finance and Personnel Committee DT: November 4, 2012

FM:  Herbert Pike, Finance Director Re:  Financial Reports
--August 2012

The following are highlights of the financial reports for August 2012.

Overall Summary (Figures 3. 4.7 & 8)

August 2012 represents the second month of the new fiscal year. ABAG fund equity went up
about $14 thousand during August 2012. As we know, ABAG works on a thin margin and the
Agency’s equity balances will be closely monitored as the year progresses. Because of several
large projects closing in recent months, new projects starting up, some higher grant activity
carrying over from the prior fiscal year, and some delays in internal staff turnover which slowed
year-end closing processes, receivables have increased to unsustainably high amounts. Staff is
working to catch up and reduce receivables to more manageable levels over the next two to three
months.

Cash on Hand (Figure 1)

Cash on hand decreased to $2.97 million as of August 31st from $3.27 million on July 31st. The
decrease of $299 thousand is attributed primarily to the high level of accounts receivable noted
below. The August balance includes approximately $1.37 million invested in the Local Agency
Investment Fund (LAIF). Currently, ABAG does not hold any other investments. The August
31st cash balance is approximately $470 thousand less than the prior year. This is attributable to
the very high amount in receivables, especially compared to the year prior.

Receivables (Figure 2)

Receivables from grant and service programs amounted to about $6.17 million on August 31st,
an increase of $788 thousand over the month prior. While the unbilled grants receivables
decreased $422 thousand, services receivable increased $319 thousand, and “billed” grants
receivable increased $882 thousand over the prior month.  Part of the overall increase is
attributable to delays in the Accounting area due to the unexpected turnover in one of its five
positions; a temporary replacement has been secured to get back to full strength until a full-time
replacement can be recruited and hired. Receivables are approximately $2.95 million higher than
they were a year prior reflecting higher activity levels over the last several months.

Actual vs. Budgeted Expenses (Figure 9)

Total expenses through August 31st, the second month of the new fiscal year, amounted to about
$3.805 million, or 18.1 percent, of the budgeted annual expense of $20.985 million for FY 2012-
13. This appears to reflect the frenzy of activity that accompanies the ending of several major

F&PC AGENDA ITEM # 4-B



projects. It exceeds the 16.67 percent (two-twelfths) average and is opposite the normal trend
where there is usually a slight lag in the onset of new expenses in the new fiscal year.

Actual vs. Budgeted Revenues (Figure 10)

As of August 31st, total revenues amounted to about $3.75 million, or 17.8 percent, of the
budgeted annual revenue of $21.035 million for FY 2012-13. That is slightly in excess of the
normal 16.67 percent projected (two-twelfths). This is attributable to the higher level of
expenditures noted above.

Fund Equity (Figure 5)

As of August 31st, general fund equity was approximately $1.11 million, an increase of $14
thousand from the prior month. The Agency’s restricted fund equity, consisting of capital, self-
insurance, building maintenance and reserves, is $610 thousand. Total fund equity of $1.72
million is $97 thousand less than the year prior.

Indirect Cost (Figure 6)

The Agency’s actual indirect cost (overhead) rate was 41.73 percent, or 1.22 percent below
target. The lower than expected rate reflects the continued diversion of substantial central
services efforts toward processing various major projects and the delay in completing the year-
end books for several of the entities. The rate is expected to increase over the next several
months as staff returns to their on-going overhead activities. As new grants get authorized, the
rate may again go down as resources are diverted from indirect overhead to handle new grants.

F&PC AGENDA ITEM # 4-B
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ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
FINANCE & PERSONNEL COMMITTEE

TABLE OF FINANCIAL REPORT DATA ELEMENTS
{thousands of dollars)

FOR THE MONTH ENDED AUGUST 31, 2012

Year-To-Date Year-End
Description Actual Estimate

Cash 2,973 2,000

Receivables 6,170 5,500

Membership Dues 286 1,726
Grants 2614 13,279
Charges for Services 854 6,030
Total Revenues 3,754 21,035

Salaries and Related Benefits 2,009 11,902
Consultant Services 1,536 7,000
Other Expenses 260 2,083
Total Expenses 3,805 20,985
Change in Net Assets (51) 50
Beginning Net Assets 1,772 1,772
Ending Net Assets 1,721 1,822

Unrestricted 1,111 1,162
Restricted 610 610
Total Net Assets 1,721 1,772

Approved Overhead 42.95% 42.95%
Overhead Rate % 41.73% 42.95%

F&PC AGENDA ITEM #4-B



TO:  Finance and Personnel Committee DT: November 8, 2012

FM:  Herbert Pike, Finance Director Re: Financial Reports
--September 2012

The following are highlights of the financial reports for September 2012,

Overall Summary (Figures 3. 4.7 & 8)

September 2012 represents the third month (first quarter) of the new fiscal year. ABAG fund
equity went down over the course of the last three months by $218 thousand and is, as of
September 30", $355 thousand lower than a year prior. Over the last couple of months, there has
been more than usual turnover in employees, as well as continued high leave usage, which may
be contributing to a higher level of unbillable personnel costs as employees leave benefits are
paid out, and other benefit payouts upon their departure. Further investigation is being
undertaken to assess the factors contributing to loss of equity. The high level of receivables is a
separate problem that is being addressed in the Accounting division. It will take a couple of
month to work down the inventory of both unbilled and overdue accounts, but we are looking to
be caught up as soon as the close of November.

Cash on Hand (Figure 1)
Cash on hand decreased to $2.34 million as of September 30th from $2.97 million on August

3lst.  The decrease of $631 thousand is attributed primarily to the high level of accounts
receivable noted below. The September balance includes approximately $1.37 million invested in
the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). Currently, ABAG does not hold any other
investments. The August 31st cash balance is approximately $727 thousand less than the prior
year. This is attributable to a very high amount in receivables, especially compared to the year

prior.

Receivables (Figure 2)

Receivables from grant and service programs amounted to about $6.45 million on September
30th, an increase of $282 thousand over the month prior. While the unbilled grants receivables
increased $532 thousand and services receivable increased $361 thousand, “billed” grants
receivable increased $616 thousand over the prior month.  Part of the overall increase is
attributable to delays in the Accounting area due to the unexpected turnover in one of its five
positions; a temporary replacement has been secured to get back to full strength until a full-time
replacement can be recruited and hired. Receivables are approximately $2.755 million higher
than they were a year prior reflecting higher activity levels over the last several months and the
unexpected delays in Accounting in processing receivables.

F&PC AGENDA ITEM 4-C



Actual vs. Budgeted Expenses (Figure 9)

Total expenses through September 30th, the third month of the new fiscal year, amounted to
about $5.64 million, or 26.9 percent, of the budgeted annual expense of $20.985 million for FY
2012-13. This appears to reflect the frenzy of activity that accompanies the ending of several
major projects. It exceeds the 25.0 percent (three-twelfths) average and is opposite the normal
trend where there is usually a slight lag in the onset of new expenses in the new fiscal year.

Actual vs. Budgeted Revenues (Figure 10)

As of September 30th, total revenues amounted to about $5.42 million, or 25.8 percent, of the
budgeted annual revenue of $21.035 million for FY 2012-13. That is slightly in excess of the
normal 25.0 percent projected (three-twelfths). This is attributable to the higher level of
expenditures noted above. The increase in charges to overhead may have contributed to the
variance between expenditures and revenues. This may be remediated by recent announcements
that some new projects are being awarded to ABAG that may cause some overhead staff to be

diverted to direct project expense.

Fund Equity (Figure 5)

As of September 30th, general fund equity was approximately $944 thousand, a decrease of $167
thousand from the prior month. The Agency’s restricted fund equity, consisting of capital, self-
insurance, building maintenance and reserves, is $610 thousand. Total fund equity of $1.67
million is $355 thousand less than the year prior. Some of this downward trend may be
attributable to higher than expected charges to overhead which may decline as new projects are
realized.

Indirect Cost (Figure 6)

The Agency’s actual indirect cost (overhead) rate was 43.17 percent, or 0.22 percent above
target. The higher than expected rate appears to reflect the slowing down and/or completion of
several projects. The rate may return to its lower than projected pattern if significant new
projects are realized and overhead personnel are diverted back to direct project activity. The
realization of new projects looks promising with the announcement of intent to award major new

grants on several fronts.
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ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
FINANCE & PERSONNEL COMMITTEE

TABLE OF FINANCIAL REPORT DATA ELEMENTS
(thousands of dollars)

FOR THE MONTH ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Year-To-Date Year-End

Description Actual Estimate

Cash 2,342 2,000

Receivables 6,452 5,500

Membership Dues 430 1,726
Grants 3,689 13,279
Charges for Services 1,304 6,030
Total Revenues 5,423 21,035

Salaries and Related Benefits 3,042 11,902
Consultant Services 2,178 7,000
Other Expenses 420 2,083
Total Expenses 5,640 20,985
Change in Net Assets (217) 50

Beginning Net Assets 1,772 1,772
Ending Net Assets 1,555 1,822

Unrestricted 945 1,162
Restricted 610 610
Total Net Assets 1,555 1,772

Approved Overhead 42.95% 42.95%
Overhead Rate % 43.17% 42.95%

F&PC AGENDA ITEM #4-C



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
FINANCE & PERSONNEL COMMITTEE

TABLE OF FINANCIAL REPORT DATA ELEMENTS

(thousands of dollars)

Index Description

Sep-12 Aug-12 Jul-12

Cash
Receivables

Payroll Cost-YTD
-Month

Total Other Expense-YTD
-Month

Total Expenses-YTD
-Month

Total Revenues-YTD
-Month

Fund Equity-General
Total Restricted
Total Fund Equity

Approved Overhead
Overhead Rate %

2,342
6,452

3,042
1,033

2,598
802

5,640
1,835

5,432
1,669

944
610
1,554

42.95%
43.17%

2,973
6,170

2,009
973

1,796
801

3,805
1,774

3,754
1,789

1,111
610
1,721

42.95%
41.73%

3,272
5,382

1,036
1,036

995
995

2,031
2,031

1,965
1,965

1,097
610
1,707

42.95%
41.16%

F&PC AGENDA ITEM #4-D

Jun-12 Sep-11 Aug-11  Jul-11
2,233 3,069 3,443 2,875
5177 3,697 3,216 4631

11,580 2,750 1,877 1,036

883 873 841 1,036

18,639 2,420 1,041 251
2,510 1,379 790 251

30,219 5,170 2,918 1,287
3,393 2,252 1,631 1,287

30,351 5,440 3,097 1,138
3,221 2,343 1,959 1,138
1,162 1,349 1,258 930

610 560 560 560
1,772 1,909 1,818 1,490
42.95% 42.95% 42.95% 42.95%
39.83% 38.73% 38.66% 41.62%



DATE: November 2, 2012
TO: Finance & Personnel Committee
FROM: Herbert L. Pike, C.P.F.O., Finance Director

SUBIJECT: Proposal to Pay per diem for Attending Regular BACEI Meetings

Pursuant to direction from the Finance & Personnel Committee at the meeting of September
20, 2012, staff is presenting this memorandum and attached Resolution for the Committee to
recommend approval by the Executive Board. The Resolution provides for the payment of a per
diem to the current Vice President and President, and past Presidents of ABAG who are still on
the Executive Board who attend the regularly scheduled quarterly meetings of the Bay Area
Council Economic Institute (BACEI) as ABAG's appointees. BACEI usually cancels one of these
quarterly meetings each year.

It is estimated that this would include 4 delegates attending an average of 3 meetings per year.
The estimated cost would be $1,800 per year.

As one of the original founders of the BACEI, this would further demonstrate ABAG’s continuing
commitment to participate in its discussions and programs in furthering the interests of the
Greater Bay Area.

Recommendation Action: Approve forwarding of Resolution to the Executive Board for
approval.

F&PC AGENDA ITEM #5
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ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
EXECUTIVE BOARD

RESOLUTION NO. 18-12

WHEREAS, the Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG) is a joint powers
agency formed pursuant to the Joint Powers Act, California Government Code 88 6500,
et seq.; and

WHEREAS, Section VII.A(7) of the duly adopted Bylaws of ABAG states that
“where expressly designated by the Executive Board, individuals participating in special
committees, task forces or other meetings, shall receive a per diem”; and

WHEREAS, ABAG is one of the founders of the Bay Area Council Economic
Institute (BACEI) and appoints some of the members of the Board of Directors (Board)
of BACEI; and

WHEREAS, the Finance and Personnel Committee recommends that ABAG pay

a per diem to specified members of the Board of BACEI appointed by ABAG for
attending the quarterly meetings of the Board.

Item 12



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
RESOLUTION NO. 18-12

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Executive Board of the
Association of Bay Area Governments hereby designates, for the purpose of receiving a
per diem for their attendance at the quarterly meetings of the Board of Directors of the
Bay Area Council Economic Institute, the following appointees of ABAG to said Board:
the then current President and Vice President of ABAG, and any past Presidents of
ABAG who are still members of the Executive Board, provided that any per diem paid
pursuant to this authorization is subject to the then current limit on the total number of
per diem payments that an individual may receive in a fiscal year.

The foregoing adopted by the Executive Board this 15" day of November, 2012.

Mark Luce
President

Certification of Executive Board Approval

I, the undersigned, the appointed and qualified Secretary-Treasurer of the Association
of Bay Area Governments (Association), do hereby certify that the foregoing resolution
was adopted by the Executive Board of the Association at a duly called meeting held on
the 15™ day of November, 2012.

Ezra Rapport
Secretary-Treasurer

Approved as To Legal Form

Kenneth K. Moy
Legal Counsel

Item 12



DATE: November 14, 2012

TO: Members of the Finance & Personnel Committee
FROM: Herbert L. Pike, Finance Director
SUBJECT: ABAG AUDITED FINANCIAL REPORTS

Attached are the audited ABAG Financial Statements, the ABAG Single Audit and the Memorandum of
Internal Controls provided to us by Maze and Associates, our external auditors, based on the
information provided from our financial records, and their review of same. Following a brief
introduction and review by the Finance Director as to the content of these reports, staff will leave the
Committee meeting to allow an encumbered conversation between the Committee members and Mr.

Cory Biggs, representing Maze and Associates.

As for the reports, ABAG staff is proud to report an increase in ABAG’s equity of over $100 thousand for
the year of which $50 thousand was committed to increase ABAG’s reserve balance. Although there
were six projects subject to the Single Audit, along with TDA funding, the audit did not find any
“material” deficiencies. This places ABAG in a very strong position to continue to administer federal
grants for the region. There was one deficiency noted by the auditor in the Memorandum of Internal
Controls, although it had no direct fiscal impact; that deficiency was the high number of delinquent
filings of the form 700 for the Fair Political Practices Commission. Our response is that ABAG will more
closely adhere to guidelines and, when necessary, report delinquent filers to the FPPC.

Obviously, Accounting staff are readily available to respond to any and all questions from the
Committee. if an answer is not immediately known, the question will be noted and a written response

provided within the week.

F&PC AGENDA ITEM #6
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ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30,2012
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IV MAZE

& ASSOCIATES

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Executive Board
Association of Bay Area Governments
Oakland, California

We have audited the basic financial statements of each major fund of the Association of Bay Area Governments
(Association) and its discretely presented component unit for the year ended June 30, 2012, which collectively
comprise the Association’s basic financial statements as listed in the Table of Contents. These financial statements
are the responsibility of the Association’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in the United States and the
standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining on a test basis
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the respective
financial position of each major fund of the Association and its discretely presented component unit at June 30,
2012, and the respective results of its operations and cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 5, 2012 on
our consideration of the Association of Bay Area Governments’ internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management’s Discussion
and Analysis be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, altheugh not a part of
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to
be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to this information in accordance with
generally accepted auditing standards in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

7"6?/»e Mdm
Oct&) er 5,2012 T 925.930.0902
C F 925.930.0135
E Maze@mazeassociates.com

w mazeassociates.com

countancy Corporation
3478 Buskirk Avenue, Suite 215
Pleasant Hill, CA 94523
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Association of Bay Area Governments (Association) has issued the financial reports
for fiscal year ending June 30, 2012 based on the provisions of the Government
Accounting Standards Board Statement 34, “Basic Financial Statement and
Management’s Discussion & Analysis—for State and Local Governments,” (GASB 34).
One of the most significant requirements of GASB 34 is for government entities to
prepare financial reports using the full accrual basis of accounting. Since the Association
has already been using this method of accounting, changes in its financial reports are
primarily in format of presentation.

GASB 34 requires the Association to provide an overview of financial activities in the
fiscal year and it should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial
statements.

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Basic Financial Statements required under GASB 34 include:

1. Statement of Net Assets—provides information about the financial position of the
Association, including assets, liabilities and net assets. The difference between
this statement and the traditional Balance Sheet is that net assets (fund equity) are
shown as the difference between total assets and total liabilities.

2. Statement of Activities—presents revenues, expenses and changes in net assets
for the fiscal year. It differs with the traditional Statement of Revenues and
Expenses in that revenues and expenses directly attributable to operating
programs are presented separately from investment income and financing costs.

3. Statement of Cash Flows—provides itemized categories of cash flows. This
statement differs from the traditional Statement of Cash Flows in that it presents
itemized categories of cash inflows and outflows instead of computing the net
cash flows from operation by backing out non-cash revenues and expenses from
net operating surplus/deficit. In addition, cash flows related to investments and
financing activities are presented separately.

The Basic Financial Statements above provide information about the financial activities
of the Association’s three programs—ABAG, ABAG Finance Corporation and
BALANCE Foundation, each in a separate column. Also presented is the San Francisco
Bay Restoration Authority as a “discretely presented component unit.”

FISCAL YEAR 2012 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Financial highlights of the year include the following:

e The Association’s total assets were $8.91 million at June 30, 2012. At June 30, 2011,
total assets were $9.02 million. This decrease is due to a $192 thousand decrease in
capital assets, net of accumulation depreciation offset by an increase in Current



Assets of $86 thousand. Total Current Assets of $8.10 million as of June 30, 2102,
was comprised of $2.79 million in Cash and Cash Equivalents (up $329 thousand
over prior year), $5.19 million in grant receivables (down $169 thousand from prior
year), Prepaid Expenses of $125 thousand (down $73 thousand from prior year) and
Interest Receivable of $1,304 (up $9 from the previous year).

e The Association’s total program revenues, including program and general revenues,
were $28.92 million in FY 2012, while total program expenses were $30.60 million.
This imbalance ($1.68 million) is offset by $1.73 million in Membership Dues, $81
thousand in unrestricted donations, and $8 thousand in interest income, all recorded
as General Revenues summing to $1.82 million.

o The Association’s total net assets increased $140 thousand in FY 2012 to a new total
of $2.19 million at June 30, 2012. This figure includes Restricted Net Assets of $199
thousand in the BALANCE Foundation.

e ABAG program operating revenues were $28.6 million in FY 2012, while ABAG
Finance Corporation operating revenues were less than $1 thousand and BALANCE
Foundation operating revenues were $340 thousand.

e ABAG program operating expenses were $30.22 million in FY 2012, while ABAG
Finance Corporation operating expenses were $8 thousand and BALANCE
Foundation operating expenses were $371 thousand.

e Non-operating revenues (General Revenue) and expense yielded a net gain of $1.82
million in total, of which $1.73 million is membership dues, $81 thousand was in
unrestricted donations ($37 thousand to ABAG and $44 thousand to BALANCE
Foundation) and $8 thousand in interest income.

o ABAG net assets were $1.77 million at June 30, 2012, while ABAG Finance
Corporation net assets were $44 thousand and BALANCE Foundation net assets were
$369 thousand at that date.

e The San Francisco Bay Restoration Authority reflects there was no financial activity
during the year, neither under revenues nor expense. Any staff support to the Board
is being donated by supporting governmental agencies, including the Association of
Bay Area Governments.

CAPITAL ASSETS

At June 30, 2012, the Association had $0.82 million in capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, a decrease of $192 thousand from the year prior. The change from the prior
year is attributable to the depreciation expense of some $199 thousand associated with
facility improvements ($46 thousand), furniture & equipment ($125 thousand), vehicles
($3,595) and capitalized software ($25 thousand). Further details of the Association’s
capital assets are presented in Note 3 to the financial statements.



DEBT ADMINISTRATION

The Association’s accumulated debt during FY 2012 was reduced in the amount of $103
thousand through the payment of $45 thousand of the $136 thousand owed for the
seismic retrofit of the MetroCenter at the beginning of the fiscal year and a payment of
$58 thousand toward the $620 thousand owed for the office improvement project at the
beginning of the year. This left balances of $91 thousand and $562 thousand for the two
projects, respectively. Of the $653 thousand debt outstanding at the end of the year, $107
thousand is classified as current portion. There was no new debt incurred.

MAJOR PROGRAM INITIATIVES IN FY 2012 AND OUTLOOK FOR FY 2013

We are happy to report the following accomplishments in fiscal year 2012 and goals for
fiscal year 2013:

Planning & Research Programs

The recently reconfigured Department of Planning and Research (consolidating what had
been two separate departments) is working closely with local jurisdictions and regional
partners and is improving its land use analytical tools for the development of Plan Bay
Area. Plan Bay Area is bringing together land use planning, transportation investments,
affordable housing requirements and connecting these efforts at the local level through a
new grant program, the One Bay Area Grant. The integration of regional efforts with
local funding will establish a strong platform to move toward the implementation of
sustainable strategies: strengthening the qualities of neighborhoods and ensuring the
protection of natural resources and rural areas.

Plan Bay Area builds upon significant local and regional efforts toward sustainable
planning. FOCUS, an integrated regional development and conservation strategy,
promotes a more compact land use pattern for the Bay Area. It unites the efforts of four
regional agencies into a single program that links land use and transportation by
encouraging the development of complete, livable communities near transit, and
promotes conservation of the region’s most significant resource lands. FOCUS is led by
ABAG in partnership with the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) and with
support from the Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD) and the Bay
Conservation and Development Commission (BCDC). FOCUS is a collaborative effort
that links regional planning programs with planning and implementation being advanced
at the local and sub-regional level by local governments, congestion management

agencies, transit providers, and non-governmental organizations throughout the Bay
Area.

1. By 2011, FOCUS included more than 150 Priority Development Areas (PDAs) in
70 Bay Area jurisdictions, and nearly 100 Priority Conservation Areas (PCAs). In
collaboration with local jurisdictions, FOCUS provides a link between local plans
and regional agency objectives relative to where new growth should be directed.



In fiscal year 2013 the Planning and Research Programs will:

1.

3.

Continue to improve the data used in our analysis and planning. Improve
computer models and other tools used to analyze information and identify
planning strategies.

Coordinate with MTC on the Sustainable Communities Strategy (SCS), the
Regional Transportation Plan, and other projects.

Work on the Regional Housing Need Allocation for 2014-2022.

Hazardous Waste Allocation/Bay Area Green Business Program

Since 1990, the Hazardous Waste Management Facility Allocation Committee has
developed innovative programs to serve our members and partners as well as Bay Area
residents and businesses. In 1996, the Committee began to focus on reducing the amount
of hazardous wastes generated. In partnership with federal, state and regional agencies,
the Committee launched the Bay Area Green Business Program, the first comprehensive
environmental certification for small businesses in the country. This award-winning
program assists and recognizes businesses that comply with environmental laws and
implements dozens of additional measures to prevent pollution, conserve resources,
reduce waste and shrink their carbon footprints.

1.

Through the Hazardous Waste Management Facility Allocation Committee, a
committee comprised of county representatives, continued to oversee the
implementation of a “fair share” allocation process for hazardous waste
management facilities; coordinate the Bay Area Green Business Program; and
identify new opportunities to reduce the amount and ensure proper management
of hazardous wastes.

ABAG staff analyzes the wastes generated in the region, and develops waste-
reduction recommendations for Committee review. Current initiatives include
support for Extended Producer Responsibility to shift the responsibility for safe
management of spent batteries, fluorescent lights, pharmaceuticals, computers,
and similar products away from local governments and back to manufacturers.

As a complement to California’s Green Chemistry initiative, the Committee has
organized workshops on Environmentally Preferable Purchasing. The workshops
help ABAG members make environmentally-preferable purchasing decisions that
protect the environment, and create larger demand for safer products and services.

In October 2011, Governor Brown signed legislation creating the California
Green Business Program, which encompasses the Bay Area and sister programs



that are operating around the state. More than 2,300 businesses have been
certified in the region and close to 3,000 statewide.

In fiscal year 2013 the Hazardous Waste Allocation/Bay Area Green business
Program will:

1. Monitor and advise the Legislation and Governmental Organization Committee
on legislative and other efforts to implement Extended Producer Responsibility.

2. Host a workshop for government purchasing staff to speed implementation of
Sustainable Purchasing programs.

3. Increase the number of certified green businesses in the Bay Area to 2,600.

4, Research the potential to site facilities that manage spent batteries, used
computers, and other electronics in the Bay Area.

San Francisco Bay Trail

The San Francisco Bay Trail is a planned, continuous 500-mile shoreline path along the
edge of San Francisco Bay that will form a trail system crossing seven toll bridges and
connecting nine counties, 47 shoreline cities and over 130 local, regional and state parks.
ABAG administers the Bay Trail Project that plans, promotes and advocates for
implementation. Project staff provides regional oversight and coordination, technical
assistance, education and outreach, and seek funding for planning, design, construction
and maintenance. Regional collaboration has resulted in the completion of 321 of the
planned 500 miles of recreational and alternative commute routes around the Bay. All
cities and counties the trail passes through support this monumental endeavor and park
and open space districts, transit agencies, advocacy organizations, and public works
departments have joined forces to complete this spectacular vision of a “ring around the
bay.” Over the last year, a new program has been integrated into the responsibilities of
the Bay Trail Group, that being the San Francisco Bay Area Water Trail, providing close-
to-home recreation opportunities and eco-tourism options for visitors.

1. At the end of 2011, the Bay Trail celebrated completion of 321 miles and closed
several significant Bay Trail gaps.

2. In 2011, the Bay Trail Project secured on-going operating funds from the
Metropolitan Transportation Commission for program management and capital
support enabling the project to continue its work at current staff capacity.

3. ABAG now has a significant role in implementing a new regional trail—the San
Francisco Bay Area Water Trail—with a $1 million grant from the Coastal
Conservancy that enabled ABAG to hire a full-time Water Trail Planner. The
Water Trail is a network of landing and launch sites around San Francisco Bay for
non-motorized small boats.



4.

ABAG continued its successful Bay Trail partnership with the Coastal
Conservancy allocating planning and construction funds from statewide park
bonds to local jurisdictions for trail completion. Nearly $4 million of the $4.8
million from Proposition 84 has been awarded to 34 projects.

In fiscal year 2013 the San Francisco Bay Trail will:

1.

10.

11.

Work to complete a continuous 500 mile Bay Trail system by completing gaps in
the trail and ensuring that the trail is incorporated into project designs and
constructed.

. In partnership with the Coastal conservancy, solicit, review and award grants to

local jurisdictions for planning, design and construction of Bay Trail segments as
part of the $6 million grant program provided through Proposition 84.

Administer awarded Bay Trail planning, design and construction grant contracts.

Share responsibilities with the Coastal Conservancy to advance the completion of
the San Francisco Bay Area Water Trail, including implementation of the
Education, Outreach and Stewardship Program and administration of construction
grants.

Continue to update and use the Gap Analysis Study data to identify and initiate
new spending opportunities and new Bay Trail grants.

Pursue funding strategies for trail development and maintenance.

Work as a member of the San Francisco Bay Restoration Authority Advisory
Committee to identify funding opportunities for future wetland restoration and
public access projects.

Continue to work within the FOCUS program to highlight trails as components of
a sustainable region and regional transportation system

Advocate for bicycle and pedestrian access to and across Bay Area toll bridges,
including the west span of the Bay Bridge and the Richmond-San Rafae] bridge as
well as safe and seamless connections to the Carquinez, Benicia-Martinez and
East Span Bay bridges.

Install Bay Trail signs along all complete sections of the Bay Trail.

Continue to update the Bay Trail website to create a valuable resource for
regional partners and the public about progress of the Bay Trail.



12. Publish project updates; meet regularly with elected officials, agency and local

government staff and media contacts; and plan and host trail dedications and other
public events.

San Francisco Estuary Program (SFEP)

The San Francisco Estuary Program mandate is to protect, enhance, and restore the
San Francisco Bay-Delta Estuary through implementation of actions called for in the
Comprehensive Conservation and Management Plan (CCMP).

1.

Celebrated the 10" Biennial State of the Estuary Conference along with the
release of a new assessment report, The State of the Bay 2011, describing the
current health of the bay environment.

Contracts with many local jurisdictions around the regions were finalized to assist
with trash capture efforts helping to make our streams and bay cleaner and
healthier for people, fish and wildlife.

. Based on the successful model of green stormwater treatment initiated with El

Cerrito, the Program acquired funding for similar treatment devices along the
length of San Pablo Avenue. The program is now looking to continue this work
in seven cities all along the San Pablo Avenue corridor.

The Program continues to work on over 40 projects directed at improving the
health of the estuary (see www.sfestuary.org for details).

Public outreach efforts continue to expand with production of new fact sheets, the
continuing publication of our well regarded Estuary newsletter, the addition of
several podcasts to our website, and speaking engagements to various local
organizations. :

In fiscal year 2013 the San Francisco Estuary Program and partners will:

1.

Work with the Regional Water Quality Control Boards (RWQCB-San Francisco
Bay and North Coast) and other partners, to complete a stream and wetland
protection policy for the two regions

Work with partners to implement new low impact development concepts to clean
urban stormwater; and implement restoration projects in San Francisco and the
shoreline and bed of the bay.

. Provide technical support services to the Santa Clara Valley Water District,

Alameda County Flood Control Program, CalTrans, the San Francisco Public
Utilities Commission, and the Port of San Francisco.



10.

11.

12.

13.

Provide technical and communication assistance to the State Water board
including development and implementation assistance for Total Maximum Daily
Loads (limiting pollutants into waterways of the state), and oversight of
environmental projects mandated as part of the San Francisco Regional Board’s
Administrative Civil Liability program in lieu of fines.

Perform outreach/education through the Boater Education Program, publication of
Estuary newsletter, and website podcasts on a variety of topics.

Manage a $5 million regional trash capture project with dozens of cities from
around the region; at least 15 municipalities are installing or preparing to install
“large” trash capture devices, and at least 30 have let SFEP know that they plan to
install small catch basin inserts to capture trash and debris. The project’s first
large trash capture device, hydrodynamic separator, was recently installed in
Dublin alongside the Dublin/Pleasanton BART station.

Continue to support the Bay-Delta Science Program by contracting with experts
to assist in the scientific research to support delta restoration efforts.

Partner with SPAWN and the Mid-Peninsula Regional Open Space District to
implement sediment reduction projects including rural road repair and stream
bank stabilization in the north and south bay.

Work with the Urban Pesticide Committee to reduce pesticide use in urban creeks
and promote Integrated Pest Management practices.

Support a regional communications effort related to public outreach on
stormwater and wastewater pollution and Bay protection; developing a regional
brand and coordinating partners to conduct regional pollutant-specific campaigns.

Conduct outreach to Bay Area cities and counties to improve land use policies to
promote green infrastructure as a part of the update to the Bay Are Integrated
Water Management Plan.

Continue rain garden development to treat polluted stormwater runoff and lessen
peak stormwater flows along San Pablo Avenue in seven cities; coordinate the
development of a green street in the City of Campbell; collaborate with San
Francisco Estuary Institute and Bay Friendly Landscaping to monitor projects,
certify them as By Friendly and conduct public outreach on the projects.

Manage the work of implementing a series of projects to improve water quality,

flood management and ecosystem restoration in Bay Area disadvantaged
communities.
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14. Create, organize and manage a new Watershed Program to improve the health of

our bay watersheds and improve information flow among agencies and
organizations working to improve watershed health in the region.

Earthquake and Hazards Mitigation and Recovery

Since 1974, ABAG has been involved in earthquake hazard mapping for the Bay Area,
developing some of its own hazard maps in collaboration with U.S. Geological Survey.
The Earthquake and Hazards Mitigation Program has been a leader among Councils of
Governments across the nation in providing scientific information about local hazards in
a user-friendly format to guide public decision making. ABAG focuses its efforts on
disaster mitigation and recovery planning.

1.

During the last fiscal year, ABAG kicked-off a new Regional Disaster Resilience
Initiative. This initiative will provide a guiding strategy to the earthquake
program. In the first year, the initiative seeks to develop a stakeholder validated
analysis of our current capacity to recover and rebuild from a major earthquake
and identify gaps in our planning that need to be filled. An action plan will lay
out a multi-year strategies and priorities for addressing the gaps. Over 200
stakeholders have participated in the process to date through the initiative kick-off
workshop and other planning activities.

In fiscal year 2013 Earthquake and Hazards Mitigation and Recovery will:

1.

Complete the Regional Resilience Action Plan and begin implementing strategies
to improve the resilience of the entire region, including identifying a post disaster
governance structure to speed recovery. Plan for the long term recovery of the
regional airport system from a disaster, focusing on general aviation airports and
the interdependencies with infrastructure such as water, fuel, roads and transit
serving the entire region as well as the airport system.

Seek to develop connections between disaster resilience, the Sustainable
Communities Strategy, and economic and climate resilience.

Continue to assess the vulnerability of soft-story multi-family residential
buildings in the Bay Area, and continue to develop innovative approaches for
mitigation, and implement these mitigation strategies.

Seek to provide incentives to single-family homeowners for seismic retrofit,
develop a contractor training program and a public information campaign about
proper retrofit techniques.

Improve ABAG’s approach to communicate hazard and risk by highlighting

specific risks at the sub-regional level to raise awareness for mitigation and
recovery planning at the local level.
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ABAG Publicly-Owned Energy Resources (POWER)

ABAG Publicly Owned Energy Resources (ABAG POWER) is a joint powers agency
(JPA) formed by ABAG to acquire energy on behalf of local governments, as well as
provide energy management and telecommunication services. ABAG POWER
currently offers natural gas aggregation to 38 local governments and special districts
in the Pacific Gas and Electric (PG&E) service territory. ABAG and ABAG POWER
are also working to expand their energy conservation and management services to
local jurisdictions through the implementation of energy efficiency, renewable
energy, and general sustainability programs.

1.

Completing its fifteenth year of operation, ABAG POWER’s natural gas
purchasing pool continued to strive for the twin goals of both cost savings and
price stability. ABAG POWER stabilizes its gas prices by layering in longer term
gas purchases, with the alternate objective of diversifying its gas purchase
portfolio, using a continuous three-year ahead planning cycle to design its
purchasing strategy.

During the past year, ABAG, utilizing the expertise of the ABAG POWER
program manager and in partnership with PG&E, implemented two projects to
assist local governments with their sustainability and energy efficiency efforts.
The first of these two projects included GHG Inventory Assistance—ABAG
provided resources to assist local governments to complete an inventory of their
greenhouse gases resulting from municipal operations in accordance with the
Local Government Operations Protocol (LGOP). The second project was Energy
Use Benchmarking—ABAG provided training and on-going assistance to
encourage local governments to benchmark their facilities in energy use intensity
utilizing the on-line tool Portfolio Manager created by the US EPA.

. For a new project, Retrofit Bay Area, ABAG has been the lead agency for an

eight-county collaborative that seeks to increase the number of energy efficiency
retrofits in residential homes in the Bay Area. This program is part of the larger,
state-wide program Energy Upgrade California. This program was completed in
March 2012.

Under DOE Better Buildings Program, ABAG has been a subcontractor to Los
Angeles County as part of the state and national Better Buildings Program
coordinated by the Department of Energy (DOE). Four Bay Area agencies
(Alameda County, San Francisco, San Jose and Sonoma County) are
implementing a variety of energy efficiency retrofit projects. These projects will
be evaluated for potential expansion to other areas of the country.

. In the past year, ABAG has taken significant steps toward promoting Electric

Vehicles (EV) in the Bay Area. ABAG is currently the lead on two EV grants.
One is EV Streamlining—Developing and disseminating guidelines for EV
infrastructure deployment by local and regional agencies. The other is EV
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Corridor—installation of EV charging infrastructure. This project is to provide
EV drivers with the ability to travel across the region without “range anxiety.” As
part of the above efforts, ABAG is a principal sponsor of the Bay Area EV
Strategic Council which provides coordination with other Bay Area Regional
bodies and private industry.

In fiscal year 2013 ABAG POWER will:

1.

5.

Continue to provide cost effective natural gas aggregation and delivery services
for local governmental agencies. This will include active solicitations among
natural gas marketers, and the addition of new gas suppliers, as necessary, to
continue receiving the most competitive pricing. The program will pursue longer-
term fixed price gas products in order to stabilize program costs.

. Look for additional ways of improving the customer service aspects of the

program, in particular with respect to billing and analysis functions.

Continue to encourage additional participants in both the core and non-core
programs.

Seek to develop customer friendly pathways to coordinate and synergize energy
efficiency retrofits, renewable energy installations, incentives, and financing
mechanisms.

Seek to continue programs to install electric vehicle charging stations.

Insurance Pool Programs

Organized in 1986, the ABAG Pooled Liability Assurance Network (ABAG PLAN)
Corporation provides property, liability and crime coverage to 30 cities and towns in the
Bay Area. ABAG PLAN has grown to exceed $47 million in assets and has returned
over $20 million in dividends to its members. ABAG PLAN has afforded its members
significant premium savings over time. The program has invested over $5 million in
Loss Control and Safety programs in the past three years. ABAG also administers the
ABAG Comp Shared Risk Pool (SHARP) that provides affordable Workers’
Compensation coverage to its members.

1.

Through PLAN’s continuing Risk Management grant programs, assistance has
been provided to members in implementing loss control techniques to reduce
losses in public playground, parks, police operations and those related to
sidewalks, sewers, and trees.

Since 1989, the ABAG Comp Shared Risk Pool (SHARP) has continued to offer
affordable workers compensation coverage to its four local government
jurisdictions by pooling losses up to $250,000 and purchasing pooled coverage
and reinsurance for larger losses.
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In fiscal year 2013 the Insurance Pool Programs will:

1. Provide stable loss funding rates for the Liability Program.

2. Provide stable premium and broad coverages for the Property Program.

3. Continue to manage the inverse tail claims portfolio for pre July 1, 2008 claims.

4. Full implementation of an automated deductible billing process, including on-line
client access to our automated iVOS claims system.

5. Improved management information platform with enhanced reporting capabilities.

6. Maximize recovery and subrogation opportunities to reduce “net” loss and save
members significant claim dollars.

7. Continue on-going claim file reviews for member cities.

8. Provide a broad range of training focused on the unique needs of our members.

9. Continue our award-winning Sewer Smart Summit program and expand to
include Storm Water Management.

10. Provide grants supporting Risk Management Best Practices and Loss Control
programs.

11. Work closely with members to ensure they have developed Local Hazard
Mitigation Plan and Business Continuity Plans for disaster recovery. Encourage
members to become a part of the Bay Area Regional Disaster resilience Actin
Plan Initiative.

ABAG Financial Services

ABAG Financial Services has been providing conduit financing to various public and
private organizations throughout the State of California since 1978. Its programs provide
convenient, cost saving, and secure means to meet the capital financing needs of public
agencies and their nonprofit partners serving the public interest.

1.

To date, ABAG Financial Services has provided nearly $8 billion in low cost
capital financing for projects in more than 240 California government
jurisdictions.

The Agency helps its members provide for construction of new hospitals and

medical clinics, transit systems, affordable housing, schools, museums, water and
wastewater systems, and other member-owned infrastructure.
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3. The Agency takes special focus on assisting in the construction and preservation
of affordable housing, providing financing to date for more than 11,330 units in
nearly one-hundred affordable apartment communities.

In fiscal year 2013 ABAG Financial Services will continue to offer:

1. Economical funding for developers of affordable multi-family housing,
independent schools, hospitals, clinics, and other voluntary healthcare providers
through the various programs of the ABAG Finance Authority.

2. Tax-Exempt Lease financing through ABAG Credit Pooling and ABAG Leasing
programs, providing the lowest available cost source for funding for both major
lease secured projects and smaller capital equipment needs.

3. Comprehensive services to meet the land-secured and economic development
financing needs of member agencies.

4. Its industry leading tax-allocation bond product benefiting the redevelopment
efforts of its Membership, and its pooled financing vehicle for Water and
Wastewater Districts. Both of these financing pools provide easy access and low
cost funding for the smaller borrowing needs of special districts in the Agency’s
member jurisdictions.

ABAG Training Center

The ABAG Training Center has been an ABAG service program since 1979, created to
provide economical alternatives for local government employees to obtain professional
development training. Today’s courses focus on safety training required by the
Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) and the Department of
Transportation (DOT). Because of early entry into this training field, this program has
developed a strong catalog of courses, a good reputation, and capable student
management and course enrollment and delivery systems.

1. The development of the Internet allowed us to offer courses not only to
employees of Bay Area local governments, but also to students around the world.
More than 7,000 students each year receive training through our web-based
identity-- www.hazmatschool.com.

2. Over the last fiscal year, the program has continued the practice of refreshing
course material to keep it up to date and performing small technical changes to
make the training experience easier for users as well as their supervisors and
corporate training coordinators.

3. Affiliation with the U.S General Services Administration (GSA) was renewed,
facilitating marketing to Federal Agencies and Departments.
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In fiscal year 2013 ABAG Training Center will:

1.

2.

Adapt and optimize course offerings for mobile platforms.
Emphasize the program’s strengths to corporate and government clients.

Strive, as the program grows, to maintain personalized service and a worthwhile
training experience for our members and clients.

Fiscal Management Services

ABAG continues to offer fiscal management services to Bay Area public purpose entities
and region-wide grant programs. In addition to ABAG itself, we provide financial
services to ABAG PLAN Corporation, ABAG Comp Shared Risk Pool, ABAG Finance
Authority, ABAG Publicly Owned Energy Resources, and the San Francisco Bay Area
Water Emergency Transit Authority. These services include accounting, financial
reports, cash management, investments, debt issuance, grants management, and other
related financial support services.

1.

Provided fiscal oversight for three substantial regional grants, one for location and
installation of electric vehicle (EV) charging stations, and two for the promotion
and incentivizing the evaluation of energy efficiency of homes and the installation
of enhancements such as insulation, double-paned windows and solar panels.

In spite of having six grants subject to single audit review, ABAG again received
a clean audit with no reportable adverse findings.

In fiscal year 2013 Fiscal Management Services will:

1.

Review and update, in collaboration with Information Technology, business
continuation and disaster recovery plans for ABAG services. After documenting
plans, will identify the necessary resources and implement the plan, including
such item as off-site operation sites, enabling staff to work from remote locations,
and critical supply caches for special check stock and other items.

Continue to provide error-free grants fiscal management services with the

incorporation of best practices and additional automation tools to improve the
timely and efficient provision of services.
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Legislative Activities

1.

ABAG?’s legislative outreach centered on briefing legislators early in the bill
process on these regional priorities and proposed solutions.

Of the legislation tracked by L&GO, eight of the bills became law and three were
vetoed.

Legislation considered in 2009 reflected the full range of Committee legislative
priorities: addressing local planning, infill and redevelopment issues; clarifying
sustainable communities strategies and relationships to transportation and land
use planning; securing regional blueprint funding as well as community
development, planning and transportation fees. Special bills, also considered,
included improvement of gun tracing and prohibiting the open carrying of
unloaded handguns; extended producer responsibility and disposal of household
batteries, lighting products, carpets, architectural pain, and motor vehicle brake
pads; hazard mitigation and seismic safety retrofit regional planning, climate
change and renewable energy policies; and local government policies on
unemployment, insurance, and pensions.

Committee activities throughout the year included policy briefings, a legislative
reception, and face-to-face work with legislators about Bay Area needs and
challenges.

In fiscal year 2013 Legislative Activities will:

1.

Continue to pursue state and federal legislation addressing focused integrated land
use and transportation planning, environmentally healthy communities, and
implementation of sustainable community strategies planning

2. Work with legislators on developing a stable source of income for regional
planning agencies that includes innovative financing and resources and incentives
for planning, infrastructure, and services to assist local governments.

3. Continue to closely monitor finance reform and the fiscal impacts of potential
unfunded mandates on local government.

Communications
1. Developed outreach and engagement strategies related to sustainability and the

integration of land use and transportation planning. This included raising the
level of active participation by local governments and other stakeholders in
ABAG planning initiatives and services, coordination of regional conferences,
workshops, publications, media, and web outreach to provide a platform for
discussion about sustainable growth and complete communities.

17



. Hosted ABAG’s 50" Anniversary Spring General Assembly and Business
Meeting focused on California’s challenges in today’s constrained economy and
opportunities for regional solutions to local challenges. The event encouraged
new thinking about innovative ways to deal with existing economic and
sustainability challenges.

. Hosted ABAG’s Fifth Annual Growing Smarter Together Awards presented at the
Spring General Assembly, recognizing local governments’ innovative planning
and collaboration, green affordable housing design, urban stream restoration, and
distinguished leadership.

. The best practice efforts of the preceding awardees were documented by the
Communications Department in a special DVD on view at
www.abag.ca.gov/smarter.html.  This website section also features video
highlights of past recipients, singled out for their achievements in planning and
building transit-oriented development, revitalizing their communities, and
promoting community partnerships while preserving and protecting the
environment.

. “Greening Our Communities—Healthy People, Healthy Bay, Healthy Economy”
was the focus of the Fall General Assembly. This regional forum highlighted
state, regional and community sustainability, examining a range of green
principles related to land use and transportation planning, from green streets,
stormwater solution, and flood control to coastal conservancy and the economics
of sustainable infrastructure.

. A number of visibility strategies were developed and implemented by the
Communications Group to spotlight the significance of SCS PLAN Bay Area
Workshops, symposia on “Being Sewer Smart,” the Estuary Partnership and the
10™ Biennial State of the Bay, and the Bay Trail Project achievements. The
Energy Upgrade Bay Area Information Call Center, Energy Benchmarking
workshops, sustainable Purchasing, Ready Set Charge Bay Area Electric Vehicle
readiness were also critical outreach projects supported by the Communications
Group. Updates on ABAG initiatives and regional research were consistently
provided at symposia and workshops and through publications such as Service
Matters and POWER Matters. Media coverage included articles and TV and
radio interviews on subjects such as hazard mitigation and long-term disaster
recovery planning, energy efficiency and retrofit financing, green business and
eco-purchasing, and local government land use choices in Board-approved
priority development and priority conservation areas. Timely communications
were disseminated through extensive online news alerts providing links to
conference proceedings, best practice case studies, and presentation audio
archives.
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In fiscal year 2013 Communications will:

1. Continue partnerships with other regional agencies to implement outreach and
public engagement strategies for developing the regional Sustainable
Communities Strategy (SCS).

2. Support a Speakers Bureau of local government officials and staff to promote
ABAG programs and services and engage communities in developing the SCS.

3. Facilitate increased ABAG visibility through region-wide media outreach about
reducing the region’s carbon footprint and greenhouse gas emissions, facilitating

electric vehicle readiness, and creating a more disaster recovery resilient region.

San Francisco Bay Restoration Authority

1. Continued to seek grant funding to advance restoration and preservation of the
Bay.

2. Continued to update a strategic prioritization of preservation and restoration
projects.

3. Developed a preferred methodology for obtaining voter support for a secure
funding base.

4. Continued public outreach to better inform the public the needs of the Bay and
Delta, the restoration and preservation efforts needed and the role of the San
Francisco Bay Restoration Authority in meeting those needs.

In fiscal year 2013 the Authority will:

1. Continue to seek grant funding to advance restoration and preservation of the
Bay.

2. Continue to update a strategic prioritization of preservation and restoration
projects.

3. Continue public outreach to better inform the public the needs of the Bay and
Delta, the restoration and preservation efforts needed and the role of the San
Francisco Bay Restoration Authority in meeting those needs.

CONTACTING THE ASSOCIATION’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is intended to provide citizens, taxpayers, creditors, and stakeholders
with a general overview of the Association’s finances. Questions about this report may
be directed to the ABAG Finance Department, at 101 Eighth Street, Oakland, California
94607.
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ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and Investments (Note 2):
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Receivables:

Federal, State and Local Grants
Interest

Prepaid Expenses and Other

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets

Capital Assets, Net of
Accumulated Depreciation (Note 3)

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Compensated Absences (Note 1E)

Other Accrued Liabilities

Current Portion of Long-Term Obligations (Note 4)
Unearned Revenue

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities

Compensated Absences, Noncurrent (Note 1E)

Net OPEB Obligation (Note 9)

Long-Term Obligations, Net of Current Portion (Note 4)
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS (Note 7)

Investment in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JONE 30, 2012
Association of ABAG SF Bay
Bay Area Finance BALANCE Restoration
Governments Corporation Foundation Total Authority
$2,232,745 $31,790 $521,250 $2,785,785
5,176,425 48 10,075 5,186,548
1,034 270 1,304
112,732 12,644 125,376
7,522,936 44,482 531,595 8,099,013
815,393 815,393
8,338,329 44,482 531,595 8,914,406
3,031,845 8,624 3,040,469
396,969 396,969
567,820 567,820
106,654 106,654
1,115,269 153,494 1,268,763
5,218,557 162,118 5,380,675
192,247 192,247
609,561 609,561
546,385 546,385
1,348,193 1,348,193
6,566,750 162,118 6,728,868
162,354 162,354
199,448 199,448
1,609,225 44,482 170,029 1,823,736
$1,771,579 $44,482 $369,477 $2,185,538

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Association of ABAG SF Bay
Bay Area Finance BALANCE Restoration
Governments ~ Corporation _Foundation Total Authority
PROGRAM REVENUES
Operating Grants and Contributions:
Grants $23,178,372 $261,979  $23,440,351
Donations - Restricted for Internship Program 17,517 17,517
Subtotal 23,178,372 279,496 23,457,868
Charges for Services
Reimbursements 5,337,554 $517 60,892 5,398,963
Other 62,313 62,313
Subtotal 5,399,867 517 60,892 5,461,276
Total Program Revenues 28,578,239 517 340,388 28,919,144
PROGRAM EXPENSES
Salaries and Related Benefits 11,580,246 11,580,246
Consultant Services 13,671,920 7,696 350,476 14,030,092
Equipment, Maintenance and Supplies 157,476 157,476
Qutside Printing Costs 79,877 79,877
Conference and Meeting Costs 265,785 265,785
Depreciation 198,851 198,851
Building Maintenance 235,633 235,633
Postage 42,623 42,623
Insurance 140,888 : 140,888
Telephone 55,086 55,086
Utilities 81,188 81,188
Committee 85,000 85,000
Pass-through Grants . 3,025,126 3,025,126
Other 538,810 20,878 559,688
Interest Expense ’ 60,632 12 60,644
Total Program Expenses 30,219,141 7,708 371,354 30,598,203
Net Program Operating Income (Loss) (1,640,902) (7,191) (30,966) (1,679,059)
GENERAL REVENUES
Membership Dues 1,729,750 1,729,750
Donations - Unrestricted 37,040 43,731 80,771
Interest Income 6,336 32 1,518 7,886
Total General Revenues 1,773,126 32 45,249 1,818,407
Change in Net Assets 132,224 (7,159) 14,283 139,348
Beginning Net Assets 1,639,355 51,641 355,194 2,046,190
Ending Net Assets $1,771,579 $44,482 $369,477 $2,185,538

e R ————— eSS

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Grant receipts

Receipts from customers and members
Payments to contractors and members

Payments to employees
Payments to committees
" Other receipts (payments)

Net cash flows from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of long-term obligations

Interest paid
Addition to capital assets

Net cash flows from capital and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Interest received

Net cash flows

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by

operating activities:

Net Program Operating Income (Loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
cash flows from operating activities:

Depreciation
Membership Dues
Donations - Unrestricted
Interest

Change in assets and liabilities:

Receivables

Prepaid expenses and other assets

Accounts payable
Compensated absences
Other accrued liabilities
Unearned revenue

Net OPEB Obligation

Net cash flows from operating activities

Association of ABAG SF Bay
Bay Area Finance BALANCE Restoration
Governments Corporation _Foundation Total Authority
$22,857,111 ($48) $267,035 $23,124,098
7,104,344 $517 122,140 7,227,001
(17,938,099) (¢))] (371,186) (18,309,286)
(11,527,529) (11,527,529)
(85,000) (85,000)
62,313 62,313
473,140 468 17,989 491,597
(103,099) (103,099)
(60,632) (12), (60,644)
(7,202) (7,202)
(170,933) (12) (170,945)
6,227 32 1,618 7,877
308,434 488 19,607 328,529
1,924,311 31,302 501,643 2,457,256
$2,232,745 $31,790 $521,250 $2,785,785
(81,640,902) (87,191) ($30,966) ($1,679,059)
198,851 198,851
1,729,750 1,729,750
37,040 43,731 80,771
60,632 12 60,644
179,789 (48) (10,075) 169,666
65,541 7,695 73,236
(142,063) 168 (141,895)
63,001 63,001
432,835 432,835
(501,050) 15,131 (485,919)
(10,284) (10,284)
$473,140 $468 $17,989 $491,597

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements

23



This Page Left Intentionally Blank



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2012

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Association of Bay Area Governments (the Association) was established in 1961 by agreement
among its members—counties and cities of the San Francisco Bay Area pursuant to the J oint Exercise
of Powers Act, California Government Code Section 6500, et sq. The Association is a separate entity
from its members and its purpose is to serve as a permanent forum to discuss and study matters of
mutual interest and concern to member jurisdictions, develop policies and action plans, and provide
services and undertake actions addressing such matters.

The Association is governed by a General Assembly comprised of elected officials from member
cities and counties. The General Assembly appoints an Executive Board to carry out policy

decisions, approve the annual budget, appoint an Executive Director, and report to the General
Assembly.

A. Reporting Entity

The Association is a membership organization that provides a variety of planning and other service
programs for its members.

The accompanying basic financial statements present the operations of the Association, which is the
primary activity, along with the financial activities of its component units, which are entities for which
the Association is financially accountable. Although they are separate legal entities, they are presented
in the basic financial statements as either a blended component unit or discretely presented component
unit.

Blended component units

Blended component units are in substance part of the Association’s operations and are reported as an
integral part of the Association’s financial statements. The following component units are blended and
are described below:

e ABAG Finance Corporation (Corporation) is a non-profit public benefit corporation created on
June 24, 1985 that aids members in obtaining financing by acting as a conduit in the
sponsorship of credit pooling arrangements. Participating members issue debt, leases or
certificates of participation (COPs) that are pooled as a single issue by the Corporation.
Members® payments are pooled to repay the debt and the assets leased become the property of
the member when it has paid off its debt obligation.

The Corporation is governed by a sub-committee of the Association’s Executive Board, which
establishes financing policies and approves each credit pooling arrangement.

e BALANCE Foundation (BALANCE) is a non-profit, tax-exempt corporation created on
September 22, 1987, established to assist Bay Area governments in obtaining funds to study,
analyze and resolve regional issues. BALANCE is governed by a Board of Directors whose
appointment is controlled by the Association.
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ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30,2012

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)J

Discretely presented component unit

A component unit is a legally separate organization for which elected officials of the primary entity are
financially accountable. It can also be an organization whose relationship with the primary entity is
such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial statement to be misleading or
incomplete. The Association has one discretely presented component unit, San Francisco Bay
Restoration Authority.

e The San Francisco Bay Restoration Authority was created by a State legislation on September
30, 2008 to raise and allocate resources for the restoration, enhancement, protection, and
enjoyment of wetlands and wildlife habitat in the San Francisco Bay and along its shoreline.
The Restoration Authority is governed by a board that is appointed by the Association, yet is
composed of members that are different from the Association’s board. The Authority had no
activity during the year ended June 30, 2012.

Additional financial information for each component unit can be obtained at the entity’s administrative
offices, 101 Eighth Street, Oakland, CA 94607-4707.

Other Affiliated Entities

Over the past two decades, the Association created a number of public purpose entities to offer various
service programs. The financial activities of the entities are not included in these financial statements
because these entities are not controlled by the Executive Board and the composition of their
membership may be different than that of the Association. However, the Association has agreements
with each of these entities to provide management, administrative and other support services. These
entities and the service programs offered are described below:

s ABAG Pooled Liability Assurance Network (PLAN) Corporation provides risk management,
liability coverage, claims management and loss prevention services for participating members
of PLAN. The Association acts as PLAN’s trustee, providing promotional, administrative, and
management support. PLAN paid the Association $2,505,818 for these services and $251,966
for contract services in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.

e ABAG Finance Authority for Non-profit Corporations (FAN) assists non-profit corporations in
obtaining financing. The Association assists FAN in issuing tax-exempt debt. It also provides
administrative and management support. FAN paid the Association $957,990 for these services
and $240,480 for contract services in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.

e ABAG Comp Shared Risk Pool (SHARP) provides workers compensation coverage and claims
management for participating members. The Association provides risk management,
administrative, and management support. SHARP paid the Association $72,058 for these
services and $26,249 for contract services in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.

e ABAG Publicy Owned Energy Resources (POWER) provides gas energy aggregation services
to participating members. The Association acts as POWER’S trustee, providing promotional,
administrative and management support. POWER paid the Association $302,788 for these
services and $12,153 for contract services in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) l

B. Basis of Presentation

The Association’s Basic Financial Statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. The Government Accounting Standards Board is
the acknowledged standard setting body for establishing accounting and financial reporting standards
followed by governmental entities in the U.S.A.

These Standards require that the financial statements described below be presented.

Government-wide Statements: The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities display
information about the primary reporting entity (the Association). These statements include the financial
activities of the overall Association. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of
internal activities. These statements display the business-type activities of the Association. Business-
type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties.

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for
each function of the Association’s business-type activities. Direct expenses are those that are
specifically associated with a program or function. Program revenues include (a) charges paid by the
recipients of goods or services offered by the programs, (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational needs of a particular program and (c) fees, grants and contributions that are
restricted to financing the acquisition or construction of capital assets. Revenues that are not classified
as program revenues are presented as general revenues.

C. Major Funds
Major funds are defined as funds that have either assets, liabilities, revenues or expenses equal to ten
percent of their fund-type total and five percent of the grand total. The Association’s major funds are

presented separately in the fund financial statements.

The Association reported all its enterprise funds as major funds in the accompanying financial
statements:

Association Fund — this fund accounts for revenues and expenses of the Association.

ABAG Finance Corporation Fund — this fund accounts for revenues and expenses of the ABAG
Finance Corporation.

BALANCE Foundation Fund — this fund accounts for revenues and expenses of the Bay Area Leaders
Addressing the Challenge of the Economy and Environment Foundation.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (ContinuedLl

D.

F.

Basis of Accounting

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the full accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the Association gives or receives value without directly,
receiving or giving equal value in exchange, include grants, entitlements, and donations. On the
accrual basis, revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in
which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Expenditures in excess of reimbursement are
recorded as receivables if allowable under the grant, while excess reimbursements are recorded as
unearned revenues.

The Association offers a number of service programs that are funded under cost-reimbursement or
fee-for-service basis. Discretionary funds, comprised primarily of membership dues, amount to about
8% of total revenues. Discretionary funds are used to cover certain management and administrative
expenses and may occasionally be allocated to meet local match requirements as stipulated in certain
grant contracts. Thus, both restricted and unrestricted net assets may be available to finance program
expenditures. The Association’s policy is to first apply restricted grant resources to such programs,
followed by unrestricted revenues if necessary.

Certain indirect costs are included in program expenses reported for individual functions and activities.
Applicable statements and interpretations of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued

before November 30, 1989 may apply unless they conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.
The Association has elected not to apply FASB pronouncements issued after November 30, 1989.

Compensated Absences
Compensated absences comprise vacations and are recorded as an expense when earned. The accrued
liability for unused compensated absences is computed using current employee pay rates. Sick pay
does not vest and is not accrued.
The changes in the compensated absences were as follows:

Balance June 30, 2011 $526,215

Additions 395,413

Payments (332,412)

Balance June 30,2012 $589,216

Due within one year $396,969
Estimates

The Association’s management has made a number of estimates and assumptions relating to the
reporting of assets and liabilities and revenues and expenses and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities to prepare these financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP). Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

A. Carrying Amount and Fair Value

Cash and investments comprised the following at June 30, 2012:

Total
LAIF $1,668,590
Cash:
Cash in banks 1,116,195
Cash on hand 1,000
Total Cash and Investments $2.785,785

The Association pools cash from all sources and all funds so that it can be invested at the maximum
yield, consistent with the principles of safety and liquidity. Individual funds can make expenditures at
any time. Investments are carried at fair value.

B. Investments Authorized by the Association

The Association’s Investment Policy and the California Government Code allow the Association to
invest in the following, within the stated guidelines:

Maximum
Maximum  Investment
Maximum Minimum Credit Percentage in One
Authorized Investment Type Maturity Quality of Portfolio Issuer
U.S. Treasury Obligations 1 year N/A None None
U.S. Agency Securities 1 year N/A None None
Bankers' Acceptances 180 days N/A 40% 30%
Commercial Paper 180 days Al/P1 10% 10%
Investment Agreements On Demand N/A None None
Repurchase Agreements 15 days N/A 10% None
Certificates of Deposit 1 year N/A 10% None
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 1 year N/A 30% None
Money Market Mutual Funds On Demand Top rating category 20% 10%
California Local Agency Investment Fund On Demand N/A None None
Investment Trust of California (CalTRUST)  On Demand N/A None None
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[NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) |

C. Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates may adversely affect the fair value of
the Association’s investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater is the
sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. The sensitivity of the fair values of the
Association’s investments to market interest rate fluctuations is presented by the following maturity
schedule of the Association’s cash and investments:

12 Months
or less
Local Agency Investment Fund $1,668,590
Cash in banks 1,116,195
Cash on hand 1,000
Total Cash and Investments $2,785,785

As of year-end, the weighted average maturity of the investments in the LAIF investment pool is
approximately 268 days.

D. Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, the Association may not be able to recover its deposits or collateral securities that are in
the possession of an outside party. Under California Government Code Section 53651, depending on
specific types of eligible securities, a bank must deposit eligible securities posted as collateral with its
agent having a fair value of 110% to 150% of the Association’s cash on deposit. All of the
Association’s deposits are either insured by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or
collateralized with pledged securities held in the trust department of the financial institutions in the
Association’s name.

E. Local Agency Investment Fund

The Association is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is
regulated by California Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the
State of California. The Association reports its investment in LAIF at the fair value amount provided by
LAIF. The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF,
which are maintained on an amortized cost basis. Included in LAIF’s investment portfolio are
collateralized mortgage obligations, mortgage-backed securities, other asset-backed securities, loans to
certain state funds, and floating rate securities issued by federal agencies, government-sponsored
enterprises, and corporations.

Under California Government Code, LAIF is allowed greater investment flexibility than the
Association is permitted. As such, LAIF’s investment portfolio may contain investments not
otherwise permitted for the Association. For funds invested in LAIF, LAIF’s investment policy
overrides the Association’s investment policy.
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NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) |

F. Statement of Cash Flows

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Association considers all highly liquid investments,
including restricted investments but excluding cash with fiscal agents, with a maturity of three months

or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

NOTE 3 — CAPITAL ASSETS _ |

All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not
available. Contributed capital assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date
contributed. The Association’s policy is to capitalize all assets with costs exceeding $5,000.

Capital assets with limited useful lives are depreciated over their estimated useful lives. The purpose
of depreciation is to spread the cost of capital assets equitably among all users over the life of these
assets. The amount charged to depreciation expense each year represents that year’s pro rata share of the

cost of capital assets.

Depreciation expense is calculated on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of assets,

which are as follows:

Facilities and improvements 5to 30 years
Furniture and equipment 3 to 10 years
Vehicles 5 years
Capitalized software 3 to 6 years

Capital asset balances and transactions as of June 30 are summarized below:

June 30, 2011 Additions Retirements June 30, 2012
Capital assets being depreciated:
Facilities and improvements $3,604,147 $3,604,147
Furniture and equipment 1,044,518 $7,202 ($15,573) 1,036,147
Vehicles 57,652 57,652
Capitalized software 705,572 (14,868) 690,704 -
Total capital assets being depreciated 5,411,889 7,202 (30,441) 5,388,650
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Facilities and improvements (3,295,166) (45,776) (3,340,942)
Furniture and equipment (407,297) (124,696) 15,573 (516,420)
Vehicles (51,660) (3,595) (55,255)
Capitalized software (650,724) (24,784) 14,868 (660,640)
Accumulated depreciation (4,404,847) (198,851) 30,441 (4,573,257)
Total $1,007,042 ($191,649) $815,393
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NOTE 4 - LONG TERM OBLIGATION

A. Additions and Retirements

The Association’s obligation issues and transactions are summarized below and discussed in detail
thereafter:

Balance at June 30, 2012

Balance Current Long-term
June 30, 2011 Retirements Portion Portion
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITY
Seismic Retrofit Project
0% Interest rate, due 6/30/2014 $136,380 $45,459 $45,459 $45,462
Office Improvement Project
Variable rate + 1%, due 1/1/2020 619,758 57,640 61,195 500,923
Total $756,138 $103,099 $106,654 $546,385

. Line of Credit

In July 2009, the Association signed a $2 million line of credit arrangement with a bank. In fiscal year
2011, the Association renewed the line of credit to mature on February 28, 2014. Interest is at a
variable rate that shall not be less than 4.00% annually and is to be paid monthly. Pursuant to its
agreement with the bank the Association assigned its future rents and revenues and pledged its
interest in the building as collateral. No borrowings were made on the line of credit during fiscal year
2012.

. Seismic Retrofit Project

In fiscal year 2007, the Association entered into an agreement with the Regional Administrative
Facility Corporation (RAFC) to make repayments on the seismic retrofit project, which began in
fiscal year 2008. The project was completed in July 2008. In fiscal year 2011, RAFC granted the
Association approval to pay the balance of the agreement by June 30, 2014. The outstanding balance
is to be repaid as follows:

For the Year Ending
June 30 Principal
2013 $45,459
2014 45,462
Total $90,921
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NOTE 4 - LONG TERM OBLIGATION (Continued) |

D. Installment Sales Agreement

In January 2010, the Association entered into an installment sale agreement with ABAG Finance
Authority for Non-profit Corporations (Authority) in the amount of $700,000, whereas, the Authority
financed various office improvement projects to the Association. Principal and interest payments are
paid monthly beginning February 1, 2010 until January 1, 2020. The agreement bears a variable
interest at the average annual Local Agency Investment Fund’s (LAIF) rate plus one percent (1.448%
as of June 30, 2012). As of June 30, 2012, the installment agreement obligations, based on the June

30, 2012 interest rate, were as follows:

For the Year Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Total
2013 $61,195 $8,139 $69,334
2014 64,969 7,253 72,222
2015 68,976 6,313 75,289
2016 73,231 5,314 78,545
2017 77,747 4,253 82,000
2018 - 2020 216,000 5,724 221,724
Total $562,118 $36,996 $599,114

NOTE 5 - WINDEMERE RANCH ASSESSMENT DISTRICT SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DEBT

On behalf of Contra Costa County, the Association formed the Windemere Ranch Assessment
District in an unincorporated area of that County. The District issued special assessment debt to fund

infrastructure improvements as part of the development of residential housing in the District.

These debt issues are repayable out of special assessments on the parcels in the District, and are
secured by liens on each parcel. The Association has no obligation for the repayment of the District’s

assessment debt, and accordingly, does not record this debt in its financial statements.

The outstanding balance of each of the District’s debt issues has been refunded by new debt issued on
June 26, 2007 by the ABAG Financing Authority for Nonprofit Corporation. The Association has no
obligation for the repayment of these new revenue bonds, therefore has not recorded this debt in its

financial statements.
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NOTE 6 - CONDUIT FINANCING PROGRAMS FOR MEMBERS

The Association assists members and other borrowers in obtaining financing through the issuance of
revenue bonds, special assessment debt, certificates of participation in lease revenues and in straight
leasing arrangements.

The underlying liability for the repayment of each of these issues rests with the borrower participating
in that issue, and not with the Association, which acts only as a conduit in pooling each issue. For
that reason, the Association has not recorded a liability for these issues. The Association sponsored
the following outstanding conduit debt balances that were payable by their respective borrowers at
June 30:

Type of Financing Unpaid balance - June 30

2012 2011
Revenue Bonds $232,705,000 $242,665,000
Certificates of Participation 25,330,000 32,355,000
Total $258,035,000 $275,020,000

NOTE 7 —-NET ASSETS

Net Assets is the excess of all the Association’s assets over all its liabilities, regardless of fund. The
Association’s Net Assets are divided into the three captions described below:

Invested in Capital Assets, net of related debt is the current net book value of the Association’s capital
assets, less the outstanding balance of any debt issued to finance these assets.

Restricted describes the portion of Net Assets which is restricted as to use by the terms and conditions
of donations received by the Association. As of June 30, 2012, the entire amount in Restricted Net

Assets is restricted for the support of the Tranter-Leong Interriship Program.

Unrestricted describes the portion of the Net Assets which may be used for any Association purpose.
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NOTE 8 - PENSION PLAN |

All Association employees are eligible to participate in pension plans offered by California Public
Employees Retirement System (CALPERS), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension
plan which acts as a common investment and administrative agent for its participating member
employers. CALPERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments
and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. The
Association’s employees participate in the Miscellaneous Employee Plan. Benefit provisions under the
Plan are established by State statute and Association resolution. Benefits are based on years of credited
service, equal to one year of full time employment. Funding contributions for the Plan are determined
annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CALPERS. The Plan’s provisions and benefits in effect
at June 30, 2012, are summarized as follows:

Miscellaneous
Benefits vesting schedule 5 years service
Benefits payments Monthly for life
Retirement age 50
Monthly benefits, as a % of annual salary 2%-2.5%
Required employee contribution rates 8.00%
Required employer contribution rates 21.307%

CALPERS determines contribution requirements using a modification of the Entry Age Normal
Method. Under this method, the Association’s total normal benefit cost for each employee from date of
hire to date of retirement is expressed as a level percentage of the related total payroll cost. Normal
benefit cost under this method is the level amount the Association must pay annually to fund an
employee’s projected retirement benefit. This level percentage of payroll method is used to amortize
any unfunded actuarial liabilities. The actuarial assumptions used to compute contribution requirements
are also used to compute the actuarial accrued liability. The Association does not have a net pension
obligation since it pays these actuarially required contributions monthly.

CALPERS uses a market related value method of valuing the Plan’s assets. Investment gains and losses
are accumulated as they are realized and ten percent of the net balance is amortized annually. An
investment rate of return of 7.75% is assumed, including inflation at 3%. Annual salary increases are
assumed to vary by duration of service. Changes in liability due to plan amendments, changes in
actuarial assumptions, or changes in actuarial methods are amortized as a level percentage of payroll on
a closed basis over twenty years.
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[NOTE 8 - PENSION PLAN (Continued) |

Actuarially required contributions for fiscal years 2012, 2011 and 2010, were $1,980,202,
$1,781,404, and $1,773,179, respectively. The Association made these contributions as required,
together with certain immaterial amounts required as the result of the payment of other additional
employee compensation.

As required by State law, effective July 1, 2005, the Association’s Miscellaneous Plan was terminated,
and the employees in the plan were required by CALPERS to join a new State-wide pool. One of the
conditions of entry to the pool was that the Association true-up any unfunded liabilities in the former
Plan, either by paying cash or by increasing its future contribution rates through a Side Fund offered by
CALPERS. The Association will fund the liability through increased future contribution rates.

The State-wide pool’s actuarial value and funding progress over the past three years are set forth below
at the actuarial valuation date of June 30:

Miscellaneous Plan:

Unfunded
Entry Age Annual Liability as
Valuation Accrued Unfunded Funded Covered % of
Date Liability Value of Assets Liability Ratio Payroll Payroll
2008 $1,537,909,933 $1,337,707,835 $200,202,098 87.0% $333,307,600 60.1%
2009 1,834,424,640 1,493,430,831 340,993,809 81.4% 355,150,151 96.0%
2010 1,972,910,641 1,603,482,152 369,428,489 81.3% 352,638,380 104.8%

The Association’s Miscellaneous Plan represents approximately 2% of the State-wide pool based on
covered payroll.

Audited annual financial statements are available from CALPERS at P.O. Box 942709, Sacramento,
CA, 94229-2709.

NOTE 9 - POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS

During fiscal year 2009, the Association implemented the provisions of Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. This Statement establishes uniform financial
reporting standards for employers providing postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB).
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‘NOTE 9 —-POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (Continued) l

By Board resolution and through agreements with its labor unit, the Association provides certain
health care benefits for retired employees (spouse and dependents are not included) under third-
party insurance plans. A summary of these benefits is shown below:

Benefit Summary:

Eligibility Service or disability retirement
Age 50 & 5 years service
Disability retire directly from ABAG under CalPERS
Benefit:
Tier 1
Hired < 7/1/2009 100% of Kaiser 2-party basic premium'
Same cap pre- & post - 65
Tier 2
Hired > 7/1/2009 PEMHCA minimum
Medical After Retirement Tier 1 Tier 2
(MARA) One time only option to enroll Must enroll in MARA
Must opt out of defined benefit ABAG contributes 1.5% of base
medical plan salary to an individual MARA
ABAG contributes PEMHCA account for each active employee
minimum if opt in MARA MARA not included in the OPEB
No current active hired < 7/1/2009 evaluation
opted in MARA
Surviving Spouse of Retiree Same benefit continues to surviving spouse if retiree elects CalPERS
survivor annuity

! Kaiser single basic premium for retired before 9/1/1994

As of June 30, 2012, approximately 57 participants were eligible to receive benefits.
Funding Policy and Actuarial Assumptions

The annual required contribution (ARC) was determined as part of a June 30, 2009 actuarial
valuation using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. This is a projected benefit cost method,
which takes into account those benefits that are expected to be earned in the future as well as those
already accrued. The actuarial assumptions included (a) 7.75% investment rate of return, (b) 3.25%
projected annual salary increase, and (c) 3% health inflation increase. The actuarial methods and
assumptions used include techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial
accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets. Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term
perspective and actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are
subject to revision at least biannually as results are compared to past expectations and new
estimates are made about the future. The Association’s OPEB unfunded actuarial accrued liability
is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll using a 30 year closed amortization
period.
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NOTE 9 —POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (Continued) |

In accordance with the Association’s budget, the annual required contribution (ARC) is to be
funded throughout the year as a percentage of payroll. Concurrent with implementing Statement
No. 45, the Association’s Board passed a resolution to participate in the California Employers
Retirees Benefit Trust (CERBT), an irrevocable trust established to fund OPEB. CERBT is
administered by CalPERS, and is managed by an appointed board not under the control of
Association Board. This Trust is not considered a component unit by the Association and has been
excluded from these financial statements. Separately issued financial statements for CERBT may
be obtained from CALPERS at P.O. Box 942709, Sacramento, CA 94229-2709.

Funding Progress and Funded Status

Generally accepted accounting principles permit contributions to be treated as OPEB assets and
deducted from the Actuarial Accrued Liability when such contributions are placed in an irrevocable
trust or equivalent arrangement. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the Association
contributed $789,924 which represented 10.85% of the $7.3 million of covered payroll. As a result,
the Association has recorded the Net OPEB Obligation, the difference between the ARC and actual
contributions, as presented below:

Net OPEB Obligation June 30, 2011 $619,845
Annual required contribution (ARC) 781,000
Interest on net OPEB obligation 51,000
Adjustment to annual required contribution (52,360)
Annual OPEB cost 779.640
Contributions made:
Contributions to CERBT 620,069
Association's portion of current year premiums paid 169,855
Total contributions 789.924
Change in net OPEB Liability (10,284)
Net OPEB Obligation June 30, 2012 $609,561

The Net OPEB Obligation is included in the other accrued liabilities balance in the Statement of
Net Assets.

The Plan’s annual required contributions and actual contributions for the year ended June 30, 2012
are set forth below:

Annual Percentage Net OPEB
OPEB Cost Actual of OPEB Obligation/

Fiscal Year (AOC) Contribution Contributed {Asset)
6/30/2010 $712,835 $713,323 100% $564,835
6/30/2011 772,830 717,820 93% 619,845
6/30/2012 779,640 789,924 101% 609,561
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l&OTE 9 - POST EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (Continuedﬂ

The Schedule of Funding Progress presents trend information about whether the actuarial value of
plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.
Trend data from the January 1, 2007 actuarial study is presented below:

Actuarial
Unfunded
Valuation  Value of Accrued Accrued Funded
Date Assets Liability Liability Ratio
1/1/2007 $0 $4,128,000 ($4,128,000) 0%
6/30/2009 0 4,346,000 (4,346,000) 0%

NOTE 10 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIELI

The Association participates in Federal and State grant programs. These programs have been audited by
the Association’s independent accountants through the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, in accordance
with the provisions of the Federal Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and applicable State
requirements. No cost disallowances were proposed as a result of these audits; however, these
programs are still subject to further examination by the grantors and the amount, if any, of expenditures
which may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time. The Association
expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

ABAG Settlement with ABAG Pooled Liability Assurance Network Corporation
In fiscal year 2012, the Association reached a settlement with ABAG Pooled Liability Assurance
Network Corporation (PLAN) over a dispute regarding costs for implementation of system software. It

was decided the Association is to pay PLAN $50,000 over the next five to eight years starting
September 201 1. The payment is not an admission to the liability and is an immaterial amount.
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ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For The Year Ended June 30,2012

SECTION I—SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued: Unqualified

Internal control over financial reporting:

e Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No
None
e Significant deficiency(ies) identified? Yes X Reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? Yes X No

Any audit fmdings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with Public Utilities Code §99233.27 Yes X No

Federal Awards

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major
programs: Unqualified

Internal control over major programs:

e  Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No
None
e Significant deficiency(ies) identified? Yes X Reported

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-133? Yes X No

Identification of major programs:

CFDA#(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
20.205 Department of Transportation — Federal Highway Administration
66.202 Environmental Protection Agency — Congressionally Mandated Projects

Environmental Protection Agency — Surveys, Studies, Investigations, Demonstrations, and
Training Grants and Cooperative Agreements - Section 104(b)(3) of the Clean Water Act

66.436 Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State Revolving Funds

ARRA — Environmental Protection Agency - Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State
66.458 Revolving Funds
81.041 ARRA -~ Department of Energy — State Energy Program
81.128 ARRA — Department of Energy — Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant Program
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $498.204
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X  Yes No




SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS
Our audit did not disclose any significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses or instances of noncompliance
material to the basic financial statements. We have also issued a separate Memorandum on Internal Control

dated October 5, 2012 which is an integral part of our audits and should be read in conjunction with this
report.

SECTION III - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Our audit did not disclose any findings or questioned costs required to be reported in accordance with
section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-133
SECTION IV - STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS -

Prepared by Management

Financial Statement Prior Year Findings

There were no prior year Financial Statement Findings reported.

Federal Award Prior Year Findings and Questioned Costs

There were no prior year Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs reported.
SECTION V — TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT - FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED
COSTS

Our audit did not disclose any findings or questioned costs required to be reported in accordance with
Transportation Development Act.
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ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Federal Pass-Through
CFDA Identifying Federal
Federal Grantor and Award Title Number Number Expenditures
Department of Transportation
Pass-Through Metropolitan Transportation Commission
Federal Highway Administration Program
Highway Planning and Construction Programs:
Information Analysis and Planning Services 20.205 Not available $1,850,645
Station Area Planning Project 20.205 Not available 250,000
Pass-Through California Department of Transportation
Federal Highway Administration Program
Highway Planning and Construction Programs:
Caltrans Permitting 20.205 04A3521 49,462
Pass-Through Subtotal 2,150,107
Pass-Through Metropolitan Transportation Commission
Metropolitan Transportation Planning: :
Information Analysis & Planning Services 20.505 Not available 229,183
Department & Pass-Through Programs Subtotal 2,379,290
Environmental Protection Agency
Direct Programs
Congressionally Mandated Projects
Wetlands Protection Development:
EPA Estuary 2100 Phase II 66.202 EM-00T34101-0 397,853
Surveys, Studies, Investigations, Demonstrations, and Training Grants
and Cooperative Agreements - Section 104(b)(3) of the Clean Water Act
Wetlands Protection Development:
EPA Estuary 2100 66.436 X7-00T04701-0 816,196
Targeted Watersheds Grant
EPA Green Infill/Clean SW 66.439 WS-96932601-0 44,719
National Estuary Program:
EPA--FY 10-11 Estuary 66.456 CE-00T47801-0 333,119
EPA--FY 11-12 Estuary 66.456 CE-00T47801-1 267,127
Program Subtotal 600,246
San Pablo Ave Green SW Spine 66.126 W9-00T68901 24,688
Regional Wetland Program Development Grants:
EPA Stream I 66.461 CD-96925701-0 63,625
Direct Programs Subtotal 1,947,327
Pass-Through Aquatic Science Center
Water Pollution Control State, Interstate, and Tribal Program Support
Stream & Wetland Policy-4 66.461 951 57,918
Aquatic Science Center Contract 66.419 886 2,983



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Federal Pass-Through
CFDA Identifying Federal
Federal Grantor and Award Title Number Number Expenditures
Pass-Through State Water Resources Board
Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State Revolving Funds:

ARRA - Taking Action Sediment 66.458 09-305-550 257,200

ARRA - Taking Action - PCBS 66.458 09-305-550 166,922

ARRA - Taking Action - UP3 66.458 09-305-550 60,290

ARRA - Taking Action - Ecowise 66.458 09-305-550 22,179

ARRA - El Cerrito Green Streets 66.458 09-819-550 76,165

ARRA - Trash Capture 66.458 09-823-550 137,656
Program Subtotal 720,412

Pass-Through State Water Resources Board
Nonpoint Source Implementation Grants:
Hicks Flat Mercury Remediation 66.460 09-670-552 26,186
Pass-Through California Department of Transportation
Survey, Studies, Investigations, Demonstrations, and Training Grants
- Section 104(b)(3) of the Clean Water Act:

Caltrans Permitting II 66.436 01A1109 85,332
Pass-Through Programs Subtotal 892,831
Department Subtotal 2,840,158

Department of Energy
Pass-Through Los Angeles County
ARRA - Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant Program (EECBG)
Building Better Communities 81.128 Not available 2,424,225
Pass-Through California Energy Commission
ARRA - State Energy Programs
Retrofit Bay Area 81.041 400-09-021 8,551,027
Department Subtotal 10,975,252
Department of Homeland Security
Pass-Through City of Oakland
Oakland Soft-Story Implementation 97.067 Not available 12,450
Pass-Through City of Berkeley
Berkeley Hazard Mitigation Plan Update 97.047 Not available 19,170
Pass-Through City of San Francisco
Regional Disaster Recovery Framework 97.111 Not available 91,510
Department Subtotal 123,130
Department of Interior
Direct Programs
Fish and Wildlife Management Assistance
WRP Annual Meeting Assistance 15.608 60181AG409 39,446
U.S. Geological Survey

2011 USGS - Conference Support 15.808 G11AC20293 95,849

Department Subtotal - Direct 135,295
Pass-Through California Department of Boating and Waterways

Clean Vessel Act 15.616 00-107-744 153,669

Department Subtotal - Passthrough 288,964

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $16,606,794

See Accompanying Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
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ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
AND SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT PROGRAMS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2012

NOTE 1-REPORTING ENTITY

The Schedule of Expenditure of Federal Awards (the Schedule) includes expenditures of federal awards for
the Association of Bay Area Governments, California and its component units as disclosed in the notes to
the Basic Financial Statements.

The Schedule of Expenditures of Transportation Development Programs (the TDA Schedule) includes
expenditures of the Transportation Development Act Programs for the Association of Bay Area
Governments, California and its component units as disclosed in the notes to the Basic Financial
Statements.

NOTE 2-BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the accounts
and reported in the financial statements, regardless of the measurement focus applied. All governmental
funds and agency funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. All proprietary
funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Expenditures of Federal Awards reported on
the Schedule are recognized when incurred.

NOTE 3-DIRECT AND INDIRECT (PASS-THROUGH) FEDERAL AWARDS

Federal awards may be granted directly to the Association by a federal granting agency or may be granted to
other government agencies which pass-through federal awards to the Association. The Schedule includes
both of these types of Federal award programs when they occur.

NOTE 4 - SUBRECEIPIENTS

Of the federal expenditures presented in the Schedule, the Association provided federal awards to
subrecipients as follows:

Amount
Provided to
CFDA Number Program Name Subrecipients
66.202 Estuary 2100 Phase 11 $351,013
66.436 EPA Estuary 2100 716,741
66.439 EPA Green Infill/Clean SW 2,237
66.458 ARRA - Taking Action Sediment 233,611
66.458 ARRA - Taking Action - PCBS 133,538
66.458 ARRA - Taking Action - UP3 10,238
66.458 ARRA - Taking Action - Ecowise 11,375
66.458 ARRA - El Cerrito Green Street 60,126
66.460 Hicks Flat Mercury Remediation 16,100
81.041 ARRA - Retrofit Bay Area 6,800,430
81.128 ARRA - Building Better Communities 2,252,601
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& ASSOCIATES

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Executive Board of the
Association of Bay Area Governments
Oakland, California

We have audited the financial statements of the Association of Bay Area Governments as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2012, and have issued our report thereon dated October 5, 2012. We conducted our
audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting.
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Association’s internal control over financial reporting
as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Association’s internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Association’s internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined
above.

T 925.930.0902
Accountancy Corporation F 925.930.0135

3478 Buskirk Avenue, Suite 215
Pleasant Hill, CA 94523

E Maze@mazeassociates.com
w mazeassociates.com



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Association’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance and other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

We have also issued a separate Memorandum on Internal Control dated October 5, 2012, which is an integral
part of our audits and should be read in conjunction with this report.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of Association Board, management, and federal
awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone
other than these specified parties.

5 o=

Octdber 5,2012
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL
EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Executive Board of the
Association of Bay Area Governments
Oakland, California

Compliance

We have audited the Association of Bay Area Governments' (Association) compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have
a direct and material effect on each of the Association's major federal programs for the year ended June
30, 2012. The Association's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs
is the responsibility of Association's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Association's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133. Those
standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Association's compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the
Association's compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the Association complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for
the year ended June 30, 2012.

T 925.930.0902

F 925.930.0135

E Maze@mazeassociates.com
w mazeassociates.com

Accountancy Corporation
3478 Buskirk Avenue, Suite 215
Pleasant Hill, CA 94523
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Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Association is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Association's internal control over
compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Association's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses,
as defined above.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

We have audited the financial statements of the Association as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012,
and have issued our report thereon dated October 5, 2012 which contained an unqualified opinion on
those financial statements. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming our opinions on the
financial statements that collectively comprise the Association’s basic financial statements. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis
as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain
other procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditure of federal awards is fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of Association Board, management, federal

awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone
other than these specified parties.

:i)@’?,folz
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CO MAZE
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
ON COMPLIANCE WITH PUBLIC UTILITIES CODE §9923 A aASSOCIATES
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Executive Board of the
Association of Bay Area Governments
Oakland, California

We have audited the financial statements of the Association of Bay Area Governments (Association) of
and for the year ended June 30, 2012, and have issued our report thereon dated October 5, 2012. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial
reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Association’s internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Association’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Association’s internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above.

1 925.930.0902

F 925.930.0135

E maze@mazeassociates.com
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Accountancy Corporation
3478 Buskirk Avenue, Suite 215
Pleasant Hill, CA 94523
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. Our procedures included tests of compliance with Public
Utilities Code §99233.2 and applicable provisions of the Transportation Development Act and the
allocation instructions and resolutions of the Metropolitan Transportation Commission. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Transportation Development Act Programs

We have audited the financial statements of the Association as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012,
- and have issued our report thereon dated October 5, 2012. Our audit was performed for the purpose of
forming our opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the Association's basic
financial statements. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Transportation Development Act
Programs is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the
basic financial statements taken as a whole.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Executive Board, management,

Metropolitan Transportation Commission, and others within the Association, and officials of applicable
state grantor agencies. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited.

s et
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ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT PROGRAMS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Program Expenditures
Information Analysis and Planning Services $99,266
Cal Trans/MTC Modeling Pro-Cal 17,911
SGC Sustainable Communities Planning Grant 304,123
$421,300
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MEMORANDUM ON INTERNAL CONTROL

To the Executive Board of the

Association of Bay Area Governments
Oakland, California

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the Association of Bay Area
Governments as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, we considered the Association’s internal control over financial
reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing
our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Association’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Association’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the Association’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely
basis.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and was
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or
material weaknesses and, therefore, there can be no assurance that all such deficiencies have been
identified. In addition, because of inherent limitations in internal control, including the possibility of
management override of controls, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected by

such controls. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses.

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, Association Board,
others within the organization, and agencies and pass-through entities requiring compliance with
generally accepted government auditing standards, and is not intended to be and should not be used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

OW\%%DL Ao%yf;\—/

October 5,

T 925.930.0902
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Accountancy Corporation
3478 Buskirk Avenue, Suite 215
Pleasant Hill, CA 94523



This Page Left Intentionally Blank



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
MEMORANDUM ON INTERNAL CONTROL

SCHEDULE OF OTHER MATTERS

2012 -1: Timely Filing of Forms 700

Criteria: Conflict of Interest Code Form 700s are to be signed by designated personnel and submitted to
the Agency Filing Officer by the annual filing date. The Agency should follow the Fair Political Practices
Commissions Notification Guidelines for Filing Officers.

Condition: After reviewing the Form 700 control log for ABAG and all entities, as of September 28,
2012 we noted numerous forms that were not on file or were filed late.

Effect: This is not in compliance with ABAG and affiliated entities conflict of interest codes and the Fair
Political Practice Commission.

Cause: Lack of diligent enforcement of policy.

Recommendation: We recommend the Executive Assistant continues to follow up with designated
individuals who have not filed Form 700 by the deadline.

Management Response: Agency Filing Officer will comply with the FPPC Notification Guidelines for
Filing Officers, including sending written non-filer notifications. Additional filings have been received
since the Agency Filing Officer mailed a non-filer notification on October 1, 2012. The Filing Officer will
continue to follow-up on non-filers.




ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
MEMORANDUM ON INTERNAL CONTROL

CURRENT STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR OTHER MATTERS

2011 -1: TIT Best Practices Follow up

Since 2008, we have conducted an Information Systems Review with our audit which encompassed the
financial information system and the network environment that houses it. We expand our work beyond
simply looking at financial information systems as a result of greater risks of unauthorized access caused
by overall industry growth of web-based commerce and internet based financial systems. Internal
controls that are present in the overall network environment have become more important and relevant to
understanding the internal controls over the financial system. We believe Information System controls
must be continuously improved and enhanced to stay ahead of the ever increasing sophistication of
hackers and criminals.

Currently, there are no Information Technology standards which local governments are required to
conform to. Indeed there are a wide variety of informal guidelines and suggested controls from many
different organizations which local governments can use to implement appropriate controls to ensure
adequate security over information technology. Our Information Technology staff have reviewed these
informal guidelines and concluded that the certification and accreditation framework developed by the
National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST) for the Federal Information Security Management
Act (FISMA) are the most appropriate for local government. NIST and FISMA represent the minimum
security requirements for federal government agencies information systems. We understand the U.S.
Department of Justice recommends these for local governments. Our procedures included performing an
external network scan based on NIST criteria and in determining that internal control provides for:

Internet access defenses including hacker prevention, detection and deterrent systems
Security of data from physical or network access

Adequately protecting data from unauthorized internal access

Reasonable measures to ensure continuation of service

Information systems risk management

AN N NN

While the results of our work did not indicate material weaknesses or significant deficiencies as they
relate to financial reporting and the financial system, we did note overall information technology areas
which could be improved to conform to NIST guidelines.

Patch and Vulnerability Management - Computer or information systems are dynamic, that is, they are in
a state of continuous change. This state of change leads to change in risk to the information contained on
those systems. Some changes to systems lead to vulnerabilities or weaknesses that potentially could be
exploited by malicious attackers such as hackers. Our scans indicate the Association’s information
systems have numerous vulnerabilities. While these vulnerabilities do not directly affect the financial
reporting of the Association, they do present an unnecessary risk to the Association’s information
systems. The Association should develop a method for finding and remediate such vulnerabilities before
they can be exploited. “Patch and vulnerability management is a security practice designed to proactively
prevent the exploitation of IT vulnerabilities that exist within an organization. The expected result is to
reduce the time and money spent dealing with vulnerabilities and exploitation of those vulnerabilities.
Proactively managing vulnerabilities of systems will reduce or eliminate the potential for exploitation and
involve considerably less time and effort than responding after exploitation has occurred.



ASSOCIATION OF BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS
MEMORANDUM ON INTERNAL CONTROL

CURRENT STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR OTHER MATTERS

Payment Card Industry Compliance - The Association is not in compliance with the Payment Card
Industry Data Security Standard (PCI-DSS). Any organization that processes credit cards is required to
comply with PCI-DSS, even if the processing is outsourced. Failure to meet compliance requirements
results in higher transaction fees and liability if a security breach is found. Because the Association
accepts credit cards as a form of payment, the Association must be compliant with the applicable controls.

Current Status:

Patch and Vulnerability Management — We agree that patch and vulnerability management is important,
and we are committed to continuous improvement in this area. We find the scans performed by the
auditors to be useful in identifying areas of particular vulnerability. We have studied the results of the
scans and have addressed all vulnerabilities that show a high severity score. We understand this is an
ongoing process. We subscribe to a vulnerability scanning service similar to the one used by the auditors.
The scan is performed quarterly, and we address new high severity issues as they arise.

In addition, we have taken a significant action to harden web applications, which are particularly
susceptible to attack. A Barracuda Web Application Firewall was installed during fiscal year 2011-12
and is fully operational. This firewall operates in concert with our existing Cisco network firewall to
provide an additional layer of screening for all web requests.

Payment Card Industry Compliance — The Agency does accept credit card payments for conference
registrations, publications, and online training. As the credit card numbers are entered, they are
electronically transmitted to a third party for processing. The numbers are not stored within our system.
As the auditors point out, however, this does not remove requirement for being PCI compliant.

During fiscal year 2010-11, we took a significant step towards achieving PCI compliance. We
established a sub-network that contains only the computers that transmit credit card information, and we
implemented a common OS among the machines. This allowed targeted vulnerability scanning of these
machines and improved monitoring. During fiscal year 2011-12 this sub-domain achieved PCI
compliance certification.
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CURRENT STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR OTHER MATTERS

2011-2: GASB 57 - OPEB Measurements by Agent Employers and Agent Multiple-Employer
Plans (Effective fiscal 2011-12)

The objective of this Statement is to address issues related to the use of the alternative measurement
method and the frequency and timing of measurements by employers that participate in agent multiple-
employer other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plans (that is, agent employers).

This Statement amends Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, to permit an agent employer that has an individual-
employer OPEB plan with fewer than 100 total plan members to use the alternative measurement method,
at its option, regardless of the number of total plan members in the agent multiple-employer OPEB plan
in which it participates. Consistent with this change to the employer-reporting requirements, this
Statement also amends a Statement No. 43, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other
Than Pension Plans, requirement that a defined benefit OPEB plan obtain an actuarial valuation. The
amendment permits the requirement to be satisfied for an agent multiple-employer OPEB plan by
reporting an aggregation of results of actuarial valuations of the individual-employer OPEB plans or
measurements resulting from use of the alternative measurement method for individual-employer OPEB
plans that are eligible.

In addition, this Statement clarifies that when actuarially determined OPEB measures are reported by an
agent multiple-employer OPEB plan and its participating employers, those measures should be
determined as of a common date and at a minimum frequency to satisfy the agent multiple-employer
OPEB plan’s financial reporting requirements. :

Current Status:

The statement has no direct material effect on the financial statements in the near term, but instead affects
actuarial study timing and methodology.



IV MAZE

& ASSOCIATES

REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS

October 5, 2012

To the Executive Board of the

Association of Bay Area Governments
Oakland, California

We have audited the financial statements of the Association of Bay Area Governments as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2012 and have issued our report thereon dated October 5, 2012. Professional
standards require that we advise you of the following matters relating to our audit.

Financial Statement Audit Assurance: Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to
plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
of material misstatement. An audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards does not
provide absolute assurance about, or guarantee the accuracy of, the financial statements. Because of the
concept of reasonable assurance and because we did not perform a detailed examination of all
transactions, there is an inherent risk that material errors, fraud, or illegal acts may exist and not be
detected by us.

Other Information Included with the Audited Financial Statements: Pursuant to professional
standards, our responsibility as auditors for other information in documents containing the Agency’s
audited financial statements does not extend beyond the financial information identified in the audit
report, and we are not required to perform any procedures to corroborate such other information. Our
responsibility also includes communicating to you any information that we believe is a material
misstatement of fact. Nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that such information, or its
manner of presentation, is materially inconsistent with the information, or manner of its presentation,
appearing in the financial statements. This other information and the extent of our procedures is
explained in our audit report.

With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements, we made certain
inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to
determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information
is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and
reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.
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Accounting Policies: Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting
policies. A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the Authority is included in Note 1
to the financial statements. There have been no initial selections of accounting policies and no changes in
significant accounting policies or their application during 2012. During the year, the following
pronouncements became effective without materially impacting the Authority’s financial statements:

GASB 64 - Derivative Instruments: Application of Hedge Accounting Termination Provisions, an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 53

Some governments have entered into interest rate swap agreements and commodity swap agreements in
which a swap counterparty, or the swap counterparty’s credit support provider, commits or experiences
either an act of default or a termination event as both are described in the swap agreement. Many of those
governments have replaced their swap counterparty, or swap counterparty’s credit support providers,
either by amending existing swap agreements or by entering into new swap agreements. When these swap
agreements have been reported as hedging instruments, questions have arisen regarding the application of
the termination of hedge accounting provisions in Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Derivative Instruments. Those provisions require a government to cease hedge accounting upon the
termination of the hedging derivative instrument, resulting in the immediate recognition of the deferred
outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources as a component of investment income.

The objective of this Statement is to clarify whether an effective hedging relationship continues after the
replacement of a swap counterparty or a swap counterparty’s credit support provider. This Statement sets
forth criteria that establish when the effective hedging relationship continues and hedge accounting
should continue to be applied.

Unusual Transactions, Controversial or Emerging Areas: No matters have come to our attention that
would require us, under professional standards, to inform you about (1) the methods used to account for
significant unusual transactions and (2) the effect of significant accounting policies in controversial or
emerging areas for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. There have been no
initial selections of accounting policies and no changes in significant accounting policies or their
application during 2012.

Estimates: Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management
and are based on management’s current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge
and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting
estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because of
the possibility that future events affecting them may differ markedly from management’s current
judgments. The most sensitive accounting estimates affecting the financial statements are unbilled
receivables. The Association has recorded unbilled receivables approximating $2.9 million. Actual
billings and the ultimate collections may vary from this estimate.

Disagreements with Management: For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a
disagreement with management as a matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a
financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter that could be significant to the Association’s financial
statements or the auditor’s report. No such disagreements arose during the course of the audit.

Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations with other accountants
regarding auditing and accounting matters.



Retention Issues: We did not discuss any major issues with management regarding the application of
accounting principles and auditing standards that resulted in a condition to our retention as the
Association’s auditors.

Difficulties: We encountered no serious difficulties in dealing with management relating to the
performance of the audit.

Audit Adjustments: For purposes of this communication, professional standards define an audit
adjustment, whether or not recorded by the Association, as a proposed correction of the financial
statements that, in our judgment, may not have been detected except through the audit procedures
performed. These adjustments may include those proposed by us but not recorded by the Association that
could potentially cause future financial statements to be materially misstated, even though we have
concluded that the adjustments are not material to the current financial statements.

We did not propose any audit adjustments that, in our judgment, could have a significant effect, either
individually or in the aggregate, on the Association’s financial reporting process.

Uncorrected Misstatements: Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely

misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the
appropriate level of management. We have no such misstatements to report to the Association Board.
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This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Association Board, its committees, and

management and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties.
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